Notes to Financial State

31 December 2002

ents

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The registered office of Global China Group Holdings
Limited is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following

principal activities:

. media

. property holding

. commercial printing (discontinued during the
year)

. trading of photographic and electronic products

. investment holding

In the opinion of the directors, Luckman Trading Limited
("Luckman”) is the Company’s controlling shareholder,

which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The financial year end date of the Company was
changed from 31 March to 31 December with effect
from 19 November 2001. The current year financial
statements cover a period of 12 months from 1 January
2002 to 31 December 2002. Accordingly, the
comparative amounts presented for the above
consolidated profit and loss account are for a period
of nine months from 1 April 2001 to 31 December 2001.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (*SSAPs”)

The following new and revised SSAPs are effective for
the first time for the current year’s financial

statements:

. SSAP 1 (Revised):  "Presentation of financial
statements”
. SSAP 11 (Revised): “Foreign currency
translation”
. SSAP 15 (Revised): “Cash flow statements”

. SSAP 33: “Discontinuing operations”

. SSAP 34: “Employee benefits”

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement
and disclosure practices. The major effects on the
Group’s accounting policies and on the amounts
disclosed in these financial statements of adopting
these SSAPs which have had a significant effect on the

financial statements are summarised as follows:

SSAP 1 prescribes the basis for the presentation of
financial statements and sets out guidelines for their
structure and minimum requirements for the content
thereof. The principal impact of the revision to this
SSAP is that a consolidated statement of changes in
equity is now presented on pages 50 to 51 of this
Annual Report in place of the consolidated statement
of recognised gains and losses that was previously

required and the Group reserves’ note.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE ("SSAPs”)

(continued)

SSAP 11 prescribes the basis for the translation of
foreign currency transactions and financial statements.
The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP on
the consolidated financial statements is that the profit
and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries, jointly-
controlled entities and associates are now translated
to Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year, whereas previously they were
translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The adoption of the revised SSAP 11 has
had no material effect on the financial statements.
Further details of this change are included in the
accounting policy for “Foreign currencies” in note 3 to

the financial statements.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (*SSAPs”)

(continued)

SSAP 15 prescribes the revised format for the cash
flow statement. The principal impact of the revision
of this SSAP is that the consolidated cash flow
statement now presents cash flows under three
headings, cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities, rather than the five headings
previously required. The format of the cash flow
statement set out on pages 52 to 56 of this Annual
Report and the notes thereto have been revised in
accordance with the new requirements. In addition,
cash flows from overseas subsidiaries arising during the
year are now translated to Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates at the dates of the cash flows or if
applicable, at the weighted average exchange rates,
whereas previously they were translated at the
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Further
details of these changes are included in the accounting
policies for “Cash and cash equivalents” and “Foreign
currencies” in note 3 and in note 37(a), respectively,

to the financial statements.

SSAP 33 replaces the existing disclosure requirements
for discontinuing operations, which were previously
included in SSAP 2. The SSAP defines a discontinuing
operation and prescribes when an enterprise should
commence including discontinuing operations disclosures
in its financial statements and the disclosures required.
The principal impact of the SSAP is that more extensive
disclosures concerning the Group’s discontinued
operations are now included in note 8 to the financial

statements.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (*SSAPs”)

(continued)

SSAP 34 prescribes the recognition and measurement
criteria to apply to employee benefits, together with
the required disclosures in respect thereof. The
adoption of this SSAP has resulted in no change to the
previously adopted accounting treatments for employee
benefits. However, disclosures are now required in
respect of the Company’s share option schemes, as
detailed in note 35 to the financial statements. These
share option schemes disclosures are similar to those
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) previously included in the Report of
the Directors, which are now required to be included
in the notes to the financial statements as a

consequence of the SSAP.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for the periodic remeasurement of certain fixed assets,
investment properties and investments in securities,

as further explained below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2002. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are consolidated from or to their effective dates of
acquisition or disposal, respectively. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances within the

Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the

Company’s subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly,

so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit and loss account to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is a company set up by
contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity. The joint
venture company operates as a separate entity in which

the Group and the other parties have an interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Joint venture companies (continued)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis
on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint
venture company’s operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions, or
in accordance with the terms of the joint venture

agreement.

A joint venture company is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral
control, directly or indirectly, over the joint

venture company;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Company does
not have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture

company;

(c) an associate, if the Company does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or
indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the joint
venture company’s registered capital and is in a
position to exercise significant influence over the

joint venture company; or
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHBEME (&)

(continued)

Joint venture companies (continued) AELE (B)

(d) a long term investment, if the Company holds, (d) RHEE WAQAREERSBERFE
directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint FZABLERNR20%2FMER - B
venture company’s registered capital and has A Bk A L REZE €
neither joint control of, nor is in a position to HEETEERTEN -

exercise significant influence over, the joint

venture company.

el
(13
=
>
all

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture company EEEHAREIHEEFNEERE
which is subject to joint control, resulting in none of SBHEZFIASEHEERRLRER AR
the participating parties having unilateral control over IS EEE -

the economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and AEEEGEREHNAR ZKBEREER
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in BEIBFAAREBRRNGERHEER °
the consolidated profit and loss account and AEERERESN AR 2 - AR
consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s BHEA RASEEGZEEFERER
interests in jointly-controlled entities are stated in the BEEBE INGEEERERA - B
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net S [R] # I) 2 A BT S AE 1 DA BT 3P 4B TR AR A 1R
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any BRYUEHI R HELERE  2RE
impairment losses. Goodwill or negative goodwill arising EASBELREHN AR ZER 2 — &
from the acquisition of jointly-controlled entities, which 3 o

was not previously eliminated or recognised in the

consolidated reserves, is included as part of the Group’s

interests in jointly-controlled entities.

Associates 3N

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a BERARDASERBBREREETORN
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long ZO%Z&m%E\Eﬂ%‘TE?‘T@iK%%ﬁ ]
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the VHEREAWNBRARAKERENARZA
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position a] o

to exercise significant influence.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
profit and loss account and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
profit and loss account to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in
associates are treated as long term assets and are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities represents the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and

liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
of 3 to 10 years. In the case of associates and jointly-
controlled entities, any unamortised goodwill is
included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than
as a separately identified asset on the consolidated

balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly-
controlled entities, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date
of disposal, including the attributable amount of
goodwill which remains unamortised and any relevant

reserves, as appropriate.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually
and written down for impairment when it is considered
necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss
was caused by a specific external event of an
exceptional nature that was not expected to recur,
and subsequent external events have occurred which

have reversed the effect of that event.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled entities
represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
as at the date of acquisition, over the cost of the

acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expectations of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the acquisition plan and that can be
measured reliably, but which do not represent
identifiable liabilities as at the date of acquisition,
that portion of negative goodwill is recognised as
income in the consolidated profit and loss account when

the future losses and expenses are recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Negative goodwilll (continued)

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to
identifiable expected future losses and expenses as at
the date of acquisition, negative goodwill is recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account on a
systematic basis over the remaining average useful life
of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The
amount of any negative goodwill in excess of the fair
values of the acquired non-monetary assets is

recognised as income immediately.

In the case of associates and jointly-controlled entities,
any negative goodwill not yet recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account is included in the
carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately

identified item on the consolidated balance sheet.

SSAP 30 "Business combinations” was adopted as at 1
April 2001. Prior to that date, negative goodwill arising
on acquisitions was credited to the capital reserve in
the year of acquisition. On the adoption of SSAP 30,
the Group applied the transitional provision of SSAP 30
that permitted such negative goodwill to remain
credited to the capital reserve. Negative goodwill on
acquisitions subsequent to 1 April 2001 is treated

according to the SSAP 30 negative goodwill accounting

policy above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Negative goodwilll (continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly-
controlled entities, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date
of disposal, including the attributable amount of
negative goodwill which has not been recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account and any
relevant reserves, as appropriate. Any attributable
negative goodwill previously credited to the capital
reserve at the time of acquisition is written back and
included in the calculation of the gain or loss on

disposal.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or

corporate entities.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of
whether there is any indication of impairment of any
asset, or whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in
prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use or

its net selling price.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss
account in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised

for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the
profit and loss account in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than investment properties, are
stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after fixed assets have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the profit and loss account in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.

Changes in values of fixed assets, other than investment
properties, are dealt with as movements in the
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit
and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation surplus
is credited to the profit and loss account to the extent
of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuation is
transferred to retained earnings as a movement in

reserves.
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31 December 2002

Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each asset over its
estimated useful life, after taking into account its
estimated residual value, if any. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land Over the lease terms
Buildings 2%-5%
Leasehold improvements 20%-33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%-30%
Motor vehicles 20%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset recognised in the profit and loss account is the
difference between the net proceeds on disposal and

the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
in respect of which construction work and development
have been completed and which are intended to be
held on a long term basis for their investment potential,
any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length.
Such properties are not depreciated and are stated at
their open market values on the basis of annual
professional valuations performed at the end of each
financial year. Changes in the values of investment
properties are dealt with as movements in the
investment property revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on a
portfolio basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the profit and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the profit and loss account to

the extent of the deficit previously charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the relevant
portion of the investment property revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is released

to the profit and loss account.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent purchased data library,
copyright, trademark and domain name which are stated
at cost and amortised on the straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives of 20 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased
asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are included in fixed assets
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of such leases are charged to the profit and loss
account so as to provide a constant periodic rate of

charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the profit and loss account on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged
to the profit and loss account on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Long term investments
Long term investments are non-trading investments in
listed and unlisted equity securities intended to be

held on a long term basis.

Long term investments are stated at cost less provisions
for any impairment losses, on an individual investment

basis.

When impairments in values have occurred, the carrying
amounts of the securities are reduced to their fair
values, as estimated by the directors and the amounts
of the impairments are charged to the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise. Where the
circumstances and events which led to an impairment
cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that
the new circumstances and events will persist for the
foreseeable future, the amount of the impairment
previously charged and any appreciation in fair value
is credited to the profit and loss account to the extent

of the amount previously charged.

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity
securities held for trading purposes and are stated at
their fair values on the basis of their quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date, on an individual
investment basis. The gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of a security are credited or
charged to the profit and loss account in the period in

which they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Other investments

Other investments represent club memberships which
are intended to be held for long term purposes. They
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an

individual investment basis.

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost, comprising land, construction and borrowing costs

where appropriate, and net realisable value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on actual cost,
first-in, first-out basis or weighted average basis, where
appropriate and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion

and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including time deposits, which are not restricted as to

use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in the finance costs in the

profit and loss account.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all significant timing differences to the extent it is
probable that the liability will crystallise in the
foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset is not
recognised until its realisation is assured beyond

reasonable doubt.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(@)

(c)

| Chin

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms;
interest income, on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and the

effective interest rate applicable;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment is established;

circulation income, when the newspapers are

delivered;

advertising income, when the advertisements are

published or broadcasted;

from the rendering of services, when the services

are rendered; and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(h) revenue from sale of properties, upon the
completion of the formal sale and purchase

agreement.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained earnings within
the capital and reserves section of the balance sheet,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are

recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because bye-law 140 of the Company’s bye-
laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are

proposed and declared.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss

account in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at the applicable exchange rates ruling at
that date. Exchange differences are dealt with in the

profit and loss account.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates
are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the net
investment method. The profit and loss accounts of
overseas subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and
associates are translated to Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year, and their
balance sheets are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation differences are included in the

exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated to Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAPs 11 and 15
during the year, as explained in note 2 to the financial
statements, the profit and loss accounts of overseas
subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates and
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries were translated
to Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The adoption of the revised SSAP 11
has had no material effect on the financial statements,
while the adoption of the revised SSAP 15 has resulted in
changes to the layout of the consolidated cash flow
statement, further details of which are included in note

37(a) to the financial statements.

ited Annual Report 2002
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the balance sheet date is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual
is made at the balance sheet date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year

by the employees and carried forward.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of
the termination of their employment. The Group is
liable to make such payments in the event that such a
termination of employment meets the circumstances

specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable
future long service payments expected to be made.
The provision is based on the best estimate of the
probable future payments which have been earned by
the employees from their services to the Group to the

balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes in Hong Kong and overseas for those
employees who are eligible and have elected to
participate in the schemes. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the participating employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the profit and loss
account as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the schemes. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. When an employee
leaves the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted ORSO
retirement benefits scheme in Hong Kong or other
retirement benefits schemes overseas prior to his/her
interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. In respect of the Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme, the Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when

contributed into the scheme.

The staff in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. The PRC subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specific amount for the
employees in the PRC, pursuant to the local municipal
government regulations. The contributions are charged
to the profit and loss account, as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The financial impact of share
options granted under the share option scheme is not
recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet
until such time as the options are exercised, and no
charge is recorded in the profit and loss account or
balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of share
options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by
the Company as additional share capital at the nominal
value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the shares is
recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. Options which are cancelled prior to their
exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from the

register of outstanding options.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary

segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary

details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the media segment publishes and distributes
newspapers and magazines to readers in Hong
Kong, Canada, the United States of America,

Europe and Australia;

(b) the trading segment trades photographic and

electronic products;

(c) the commercial printing segment provided the
services of printing of illustrated books,
typesetting and printing of financial documents.
The segment was discontinued during the year
(note 8); and

(d) the corporate and others segment comprises the
Group’s Internet and information consultancy
services, investment and property holding business
and hotel operations together with corporate

expense items.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEER(B)

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, EEOAEE 2 EERIR - W EER
revenues and results are attributed to the segments BREFPZLAMEMSGE  MEEAKREMR
based on the location of the customers, and assets are E R -

attributed to the segments based on the location of

the assets.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with DEEBHER HEREZRER2ERE
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to SEETESER I MBEEMERE

third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2002

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. HEER(F
(a) Business segments (@) ¥H%oHE
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) TREVNAKEZERERNE S 2 M
and certain asset, liability and expenditure A wH (BB RETEE &8
information for the Group’s business segments. AR ER -
Group Commercial printing
31} Media Trading (Discontinued operations) Corporate and others Eliminations Consolidated
e L] HEAM (BRLER) 1ARER kit &8

Yearended Period ended  VYearended Period ended  Yearended Periodended  Yearended Period ended  Vear ended Period ended  Yearended Period ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

o e T - = s Sl Gt et S kS S e
t2R=t-B $2A=1-B t2B=t-8 $2A=1-B t2A=t-B T2A=1-B t=A=t-B $2A=1-8 +=A=t-A t2A=1-8 t2A=t-8 t2R=1-8
234 iz g3 2 LEE iz 234 iz g3 &R 234 iz

HKS 000 HKS'000. HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000. HKS 000 HKS'000. HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
TEr T TEn T k27 T TEr T k2.7 T TEr T

Segment revenue: AEHA

Sales to external customers HAREFHE snu1 578,315 109,006 99,823 101,177 347,444 11,703 7378 - - 1004133 1,032,960

Intersegment sales ARERREE 3,263 15,061 - - 124 1,358 3,461 m (6,848) (19,69 - -

Other revenue and gains AbRARKE 4,33 - 5743 107 207,312 - 31,906 1,418 - - 269,292 1,525

Intersegment other revenue ABERELHMA - - 3 - - - kR TH 1,58 (3,498) (1,586) - B

Total i 899,841 593,376 115,131 99,930 308,613 349,802 50,185 12,699 (10,346) (M1,282) 1,363,425 1,034,485
Segment results ABEE 9,906 (67,156) 4,268 (2,103) JAVALYA 4749 (65,459) (65,635 160,862 (87,455)
Interest and dividend income HERRERA 10,169 10,678
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LEREL TS 93,352 -
Unallocated gains FAiha 1,009 989
Restructuring costs Exiins - 19,083)
Unallocated expenses, net ARRRFE (15,957) (15,598)
Profit (loss) from operating activities % £H&7 /(&) 249,435 (110,429
Finance costs BERE (1,220) (44)
Provisions for amounts due from ERAREHAR

Jointly-controlled entities (8,541) (11,572) - - - - (2,218) - (10,759) (11,572)
Share of profits and losses of:

Jointly-controlled entities 12,104 (1,484) - = = = (25,405) (14770) (13,301) (16,256)

Associates - - (13) (103) - - 181 5,1 168 5,016

Amortisation and impairment of

goodwill on acquisiton of EEZRERRE
Jointly-controlled entities - - - - - - (14,607) (1,463) (14,607) (1,463)

Profit(oss) before tax Rataad/ (58) 09,65  (135,128)
T #2 @ie) (889

Profit/ loss) before minority interests
186,540 (153,967)
(24,329) 0,5

Minority interests

Net proft/ loss) from ordinary activities Fi&%(: 2 & 27

attributable to shareholders /(FB)5E 162,211 (131,446)
* Including gain on disposal of discontinued * AEHEDR TEBEZWFN A

operations of approximately HK$207,312,000. 207,312,000% 7t -
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4.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, PEEH(B)
(a) Business segments (continued) (@) ¥E%X2E (&)
Group Commercial printing
31} Media Trading (Discontinued operations) Corporate and others Eliminations Consolidated
i Lt BRAM (BALER) LAREH HE &%

Yearended Period ended  VYearended Period ended  Yearended Periodended  Yearended Periodended  VYearended Period ended  Yearended Period ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
C8$3-F CFT-F C§RcF CTT-F C¥RcE ST CRRcE CTT-F 0 RRcf CTT-F 0 CRRcf CIT-E
0 0 3 3 0 1 0 3 0 1 1
HEE 58 Ji£31 L8R HEE 58 HEE L8R Ji£31 58 HEE 58
HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
.73 T i 7 Fin fin T

TER Tin TER T TEr Tin TEr

Segment assets 546,901 610,746 53,392 04,771 - 348,34 18,725 191,948 - - 139018 1,315,808
Interests in jointly-controlled

entities 11,882 55,00 - = S = 3418 01,40 © = 235,360 176,301
Interests in associates - - 185 198 - - 12,607 15,343 - - 12,192 15,541
Total assets AEBE 558,783 665,808 53,577 04,969 S 348,343 964,810 528,331 © - 1 1,607,651
Segment liabilities AREE 0,623 194,150 3,148 17,35 = 8,07 169,042 186,995 = - 414,813 483,704
Other segment information:
Capital expenditure 56,910 U519 182 16 18,281 13,661 604 805 - - 15,911 49,01
Depreciation and amortisation 31,346 18,245 899 0 4949 1,1n 8,539 309 - - 46,733 34418
Impairment losses recognised in

the profit and loss account 1431 - - - 1 - 18,259 1,059 - - 15,868 1,059
Other non-cash expenses 8,863 1,519 (194) 814 138 ) 18,175 7,19 - - 26,882 9,517
Revaluation deficits 15,871 20,97 © n = 7,350 (207) 1,34 © = 15,664 30,99%
Surpluses on revaluation EENERRTL

recognised directly in equity EffBR 8,987 303 - - - - 862 u - - 9,849 3449
Provision for properties held RELENERR

for sale - 1,000 - - - - - 4,208 - - - 5,08

: )
(b) Geographical segments (b) EBEDHE
The following table presents revenue, certain TRENASEZRERNE D M
asset and expenditure information for the Group’s AN BEFEEMRATER -
geographical segments.
Group Australia, New Zealand,
%8 Hong Kong and PRC North America and Europe Eliminations Consolidated
FERHE 1 B HER REN HH &4

Yearended Period ended  Yearended Periodended  Yearended Period ended  Yearended Period ended  Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002
2 et cgpE -FT-F C9%cf CIT-F CRRcE SIT-£ CR90f
t2A=1-H -A t2AZt-B tA=t-B +2A=t-B t2A=t-B tZA=+-B T2A=t-B +2A=t-A +2A=1-
fi3: L LEE i3 1] LEE 131 LEE 131 LEE 8
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS'000 HKS§'000 HKS'000 HKS§'000 HKS'000
374 FEL 374 T TR FiExn FEn FiExn FEn FiEx
Segment revenue: ARHA
Sales to external customers ANREFHE 739,876 541,230 287,301 T4 66,956 120,556 - - 1,094,133 1,032,960
Other revenue EfBA 241,601 1,525 27,691 - - - - = 269,292 1,525
981,477 542,755 314,992 3,174 66,956 120,55 - - 1,363,425 1,034,485
Segment results LR 110,023 (119,084) 2,128 16,678 8,711 14,951 = - 160,862 (87,435)
Other segment information: EpAREH
Segment assets FREE 1,195,787 1,303,983 338,256 157,083 817 46,585 = = 1,577,170 1,607,651
Capital expenditure ERRR 65,643 33,101 9,618 15,502 6 598 - - 75,971 49,201
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2002

5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS 5. HEH WARKHE

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods

sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts;

circulation income, after allowances for returns; net

advertising income, after trade discounts; the value of

services rendered; and gross rental income received

and receivable during the year/period.

EEEREN/FREEERREER

S EREE

B AR EZ?&«TH&Z

A BRESTHMIESRAERE  feft
BB cBEAREKREER 2B RAL

B o

An analysis of turnover, other revenue and gains is as BEE HEpMARKSZAMOT ¢
follows:
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001
S RZET—F
—2B-F mMA—BZE
+=A=+—-A8 ZTT—F
tFE +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Turnover BERH
Advertising income B &l A 625,559 421,826
Circulation income BT 193,652 114,117
Radio broadcasting AERESRA
advertising income 21,553 12,975
Rendering of printing services 1R 1t D sl AR 75
(discontinued) (BERIE) 101,177 347,444
Sales of photographic products EEBYEMED 107,984 97,196
Sales of properties HEME = 4,400
Gross rental income HeE B AR 6,848 6,255
Others Hith 37,360 28,747
1,094,133 1,032,960
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TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS (continued)

B 1% s R MY E
—EFE-F+-A=+—H

EXE - WARKRE (&)

Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001
S M-EE—F
—BEC-F mMA—HBZE
+t=A=t-—-AH —EEF
LtEE +-B=+—H
Notes HKS’000 HKS$’000
[t & FET FET
Other revenue Hfth e A
Interest income A BN 9,123 8,304
Dividend income from ’BE—IHIFELEM
an unlisted investment BREZBRBHA - 2,332
Dividend income from rELWRE
listed investments Z BB U A 1,046 42
Declaration subsidy income HEAEHKA 5,251 -
Recognition of deferred income B A 2 TR 31 3,441 -
Others Hfth 2,272 304
21,133 10,982
Gains W 25
Negative goodwill recognised RERNERBBA
as income during the year = L5k 17 23,451 =
Gain on disposal of short term HEGHEE
investments, net &b 1,009 989
Exchange gains, net bE 5 W a5 5 88 118 735
Gain on disposal of an associate k- N
Z Wz - 486
Other revenue and gains Ha ARz 45,711 13,192
RESTRUCTURING COSTS BEARK

During the period ended 31 December 2001, the Group
incurred a total cost of HK$19,043,000 for a series of

restructuring exercises to streamline its operations

which included the repositioning of The Standard

(formerly known as Hong Kong iMail) into a newspaper

focusing on financial news in the Greater China Region.

AEERE_ZE—F+_A=+—HLt
HERNET R ERTHREES  E
419,043,000 7T 2 A AN © EABFBIEE X
52 ¥R (B #Hong Kong iMail) & #7 € Bk —

PDIARTEM RS RE
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31 December 2002

Notes to Financial State

ents

7.

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Group’s profit/(loss) from operating activities is

7.

REEBER (BE)

AEEzEEEBEN/ (BR) EHAR/

| Ching Gr Holdings Limit

arrived at after charging/(crediting): (GTA)
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001
Bz RZET—F
—RECE MA—BZE
+=A=+-—-A8 ZTT—F
tEE +-A=+-—H
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$’000
i FET FET
Depreciation e 15 39,157 33,015
Revaluation deficit THREFZ
on land and buildings S B4 15 14,927 30,994
Deficit on revaluation of REMEZ
investment properties BB A 15 737 =
Intangible assets: BVEE : 16
Amortisation for the year* FEHHE 1,150 =
Impairment arising FERE®
during the year* 6,704 =
7,854 =
Goodwill: e 17
Amortisation for FEEE
the year* 1,050 =
Impairment arising during FERE®
the year* 7,242 =
8,292 —
Negative goodwill recognised as RENERBRA
income during the year** ZAmE 17 (23,451) -
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEAB S
Current year/period KEE,/HE 2,799 2,897
Underprovision in prior year FEEBEIR - 140
2,799 3,037
Minimum leases payments under REMRD 2
operating leases: REBENER :
Land and buildings THIREF 10,511 10,028
Other equipment Hih k@ 226 313
10,737 10,341
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—EFE-F+-A=+—H

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7. REEBRRAN (BB (8)

(continued)

The Group’s profit/(loss) from operating activities is AEBzEEERRRN /(BB EMk/
arrived at after charging/(crediting) (continued): (GTA) (&) :

Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to

31 December 31 December
2002 2001
S M-EE—F
il MA—RE
+=RA=+-8 —EF-F
LtEE +-A=1+—8
Notes HKS’000 HKS$’000
[t & FHET FET
Staff costs (including directors’ BIMA (B
remuneration (note 10)) EEME (frat10))
Wages and salaries TERH® 424,725 392,899
Retirement benefits scheme RRAE R 52
contributions [ 23,171 16,458
Less: Forfeited contributions V- Qe (5,372) (5,927)
Net retirement benefits RIRTR A G &I
schemes contributions*** H R 17,799 10,531
Total staff costs =k 442,524 403,430
Recognition of deferred income B A 2 TR 31 (3,441) -
Loss on strike-off of fitl B — I B B A 7
a subsidiary Z B8 2,277 =
Impairment of interests N ]
in associates - 174
Impairment of long term RERERE
investments 2,631 —
Impairment of other investments  H 3% & & - 885
Provision for properties RIEHEMERE
held for sale - 5,208
Loss on changes in fair values of EHKEATEE
short term investments, net BB 15,957 15,598
Provisions for bad and REBEREE
doubtful debts 166 591
Exchange gains, net bE 5 W 55 5 88 (118) (735)
Loss/(gain) on disposal HEBRTEE
of fixed assets pd 3= VAC €3 (2,812) 1,816
Provision/ (write-back of provision) & R% S &,/
for long service payments (B fE#m) 32 2,163 (2,929)
Gross rental income He AR (6,848) (6,255)
Less: outgoings o B 1,762 1,619
Net rental income e WA F5E (5,086) (4,636)
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31 December 2002

Notes to Financial State

ents

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(continued)

* The amortisation and impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets for the year are included in “Other
operating expenses, net” on the face of the

consolidated profit and loss account.

** The negative goodwill recognised in the profit and loss
account for the year is included in “Other revenue and
gains” on the face of the profit and loss account. The
amount of negative goodwill recognised included
HK$21,441,000 in respect of negative goodwill arising
from acquisition of interest in a subsidiary which is in
excess of the fair values of the acquired identifiable
non-monetary assets as at the date of acquisition and
HK$2,010,000 of amortisation for the year.

*** At 31 December 2002, forfeited contributions available
to the Group to reduce its contributions to retirement
benefits schemes in future years amounted to
approximately HK$42,000 (2001: HK$1,946,000).

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 25 January 2002, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
to dispose of its entire interests in Roman Enterprises
Holdings Limited and Super Grand Holdings Limited,
which together held the Group’s entire interests in
South China Printing Company (1988) Limited, Noble
World Printing Company Limited, Roman Financial Press
Limited, Valiant Packaging (Holdings) Limited and their
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Disposed
Assets”), for an adjusted consideration of approximately
HK$388,808,000. The Disposed Assets were principally
engaged in the provision of commercial printing and
financial printing services in Hong Kong and overseas.

The disposal was completed on 19 April 2002.

| China Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002

7.

REEBBAN,/ (BE) (&)

* AFEEBEREVERE CBHMBERTA
aR[HMEER>  FRIAN -

* O RAFERRRERZEBEFAGAR
BRIEMUARKEIN - BHEAZEE
gé%ﬁ”ﬂﬁﬂ 441,0007% 7T & g % — S

ARERMELZERE - BBARNK
,E%EIﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁlﬁ%ﬂ%%‘ﬁ%’i%ﬁ}iiz/&ﬁﬁ
B+ RAFE2,010,0007 7T #) # 85 -

1,94@00&%7z)°

ERIEEK

AEER _TZ_F-A_+tHAHEBY
FoEAUEEHZE  URHAEBRED
388,808,000/% 7t it & 7 Roman Enterprises
Holdings Limited X Super Grand Holdings

Limitedz 2 8 # % - ZMEALAKRFE
AEERBEDR (—ANVBERAF

SHERERAR - BXHEHRABRA
A * Valiant Packaging (Holdings) Limited
NREMBARIz 28R (BIEHESR
El) BHEEEFERBTBEEGIIEHR
BRI SRR RS - LEER=F
T_FMATABERTRK
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—EFE-F+-A=+—H

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 8. EHRILEK#E)

A gain on disposal of the Disposed Assets of AEBRERNLECEHEEERMBEGY
approximately HK$207,312,000 was recorded by the — B 49 45207,312,0008 7 © &
Group upon the completion of the above disposal and TEEARERSE o

there were no tax expenses arising from the disposal.

The segment information of the Disposed Assets has BEHEEEZ D EENCRUBREN T4
been disclosed under the “Commercial printing” [EHEERIEL D BEHEE -

segment in note 4 to the financial statements.

The turnover, other revenue, expenses, profit from BEELEEECEESR  HoltA - A
ordinary activities and tax expenses attributable to the ¥ OREEBRENRBPERZOT

Disposed Assets were as follows:

Period from

Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001

BE M_TT—F
3~ : 3 MA—HBHZE

+=A=+-—-A8 —ET—F

LEE +-A=1+-—8

HK$’000 HKS’000

FET FET

Turnover = 101,177 347,444
Other revenue HA 138 623
Expenses i3 (91,349) (295,643)
Profit from ordinary activities 18 T A 9,966 52,424
Tax expenses BIEAX (496) (4,472)
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Notes to Financial State

ents

9.  FINANCE COSTS 9. MERX
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001
BZ HZEE—F
—BEC-F mA—BZ
+t=—A=+-—H —EEF
t¥E +=ZA=+—AH
HK$’000 HKS’000
FHET FETL
Interest expense on bank loans BEREFANBHEE
wholly repayable within five years R{TE 2 F 85 % 1,220 424
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEM£

10.

Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to the

ATRBREBELETRIRA

AP 161 &

Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Companies BRE EZM: -
Ordinance, is as follows:
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001
BZE H-ZTZT—F
—EECH mME—BZE
+=-A=+-H —ET—F
LtFE +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
Fees: we
Executive directors BITES 136 90
Non-executive directors FHTES 80 90
Independent non-executive BUERTES
directors 432 270
648 450
Other emoluments to executive YR TEE 2 EMEME -
directors:
Salaries and other benefits HoREMER 26,254 14,251
Retirement benefits schemes ERAE F 5 EIME R
contributions 241 57
26,495 14,308
27,143 14,758

lobal Chin Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002




81 7% R 2k P &

10.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(Period ended 31 December 2001: Nil).

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within

the following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000 % 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HKS$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T £1,500,000 & 7T
HK$1,500,001 to HKS$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T £2,000,000 & 7T
HK$2,500,001 to HKS$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T % 3,000,000 % 7T
HK$3,000,001 to HKS$3,500,000 3,000,001 & 7T % 3,500,000 7 7T
HK$4,500,001 to HKS$5,000,000 4,500,001 7 7T 25,000,000 % 7T =
HK$5,000,001 to HKS5,500,000 5,000,001 % 7T £5,500,000 % 7T
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 /& 7T 27,000,000 7 7T

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

10. EEM=E (&)

FRATERNBYUFATESINEMHE
(BEZZZ—F+-A=+—HILHH:
) o

H

EESME N FTIIAR -

Number of directors

EEAY
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001

BE M_TT—F
= A MA—RE

+=ZRA=t-H —
LFEE +=A=+—H

6 7

- 1

2 1

1 =

2 —

1

- 1

2 —

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year/period.

During the year, no share options of the Company were
granted to the directors in respect of their services to
the Group, further details of which are included in the

disclosures in note 35 to the financial statements.

AEE/HRAEEHETIREXRE
MEEAME 22 -

FR - ARBELBREEAAREMEM
PR MR L RBRE - FREARMBHEHERN
L35 2 HWEE
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2002

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1. AUBSHESR

The five highest paid employees during the year FRNAUZSFEERENLES (HEZ
included four directors (period ended 31 December ZZE—F+A=1T—HILHH : W) -
2001: two), details of whose remuneration are set out BEsMEFHBEE N EXF10 #E - &4
in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration of the T luEeRHFEEFES BE_ZT—F
remaining one non-director (period ended 31 December TZA=T—HIEHE : =) 2HeFRE

2001: three), highest paid employees are as follows: W
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001
Bz M- —F
—2ECF mMA—BZE
+=A=+-A8 ZTT—F
tFE +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits o REMBER 2,080 5,729
Compensation for loss of office BER (2 1,500 4,113
Performance related bonuses ¥EXRAHe - 3,200
Pension contributions BARE U 50 278
3,630 13,320
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11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

1. ENEEHEE (&)

BRERRmLHAESEEZMEN F T4

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is Al
as follows:
Number of employees
BEAY
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001
BZE H-ET—F
—2BCF mMA—BZE
+=ZA=t+-—-H —EETF
tEE +-A=+—8H
HK$2,500,001 to HKS$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T = 3,000,000 /& 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HKS4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T £4,000,000 /& 7T 1 —
HK$4,000,001 to HKS4,500,000 4,000,001 7% 7T £ 4,500,000 /& 7T - 1
HK$6,500,001 to HKS7,000,000 6,500,001 7 7T £7,000,000 /& 7T - 1

During the period ended 31 December 2001, 4,000,000
share options of Sing Tao Holdings Limited, were granted
to the three non-director, highest paid employees in
respect of their services to the Group. No value in
respect of the share options granted during the period
was included in the employees’ remuneration or charged
to the profit and loss account because in the absence
of a readily available market value of these share
options, the directors were unable to arrive at an

assessment of the value of these share options.

BHE-_TZ S+ _A=t+—H LB
N AAEERBZ-fs=HEESE
54X Sing Tao Holdings Limited
4,000,000 {7 & RXHE - A EE AR {E B &%
HZBRERZAIZ2Z2MSEE &
BEATGLEBERECEBE HEZER
RiEsEBETABEEREMET  TE&
ERHZANRK -
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2002

12. TAX 12. HE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BERENGRINEEE HEREBELZ
16% (period ended 31 December 2001: 16%) on the BETERTET - M6 (BE_TT—F
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during TZA=+—BHHE  16%) HEEE - 1
the year/period. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere Hii @ ERTRN 2 FIE - DIRAEE
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in REXB 2 BERZBIMNE - WAEHER
the countries in which the Group operates, based on 70 - 2RREMBKE -

existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Period from

Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001

BZE BT &
—EEC-F mMA—BZ

+=A=+—-A8 —ET—F
tEE +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETL
Group: KEH :
The People’s Republic of China: HEARLRE
Hong Kong B 1,265 5,417
Elsewhere H fth 3[R 123 66
Elsewhere H o @ 18,201 15,886
Under/(over) provision BEFERBIR
in prior years / (BERE) 10 (1,360)
Deferred tax (note 33) EERIIE (K7 3E33) (491) (1,631)
19,108 18,378
Share of tax attributable to: G THI AR FIB
Jointly-controlled entities HEZEH QA 4,008 461
Tax charge for the year/period AEE/HEFES N 23,116 18,839
13. NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE 13. RREGAEXEEETHE
TO SHAREHOLDERS
The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to REARMERENEE Y BE-—SF =
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2002 dealt Et-—A-+-—AEENREEERY

with in the financial statements of the Company was
HK$79,071,000 (period ended 31 December 2001:
HK$206,166,000).

Y BERFE A79,071,0008 T (BE-F
ZE-F+-_A=+-—HBItHH:
206,166,000/ 7T) ©
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14.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earning per share is based on
the net profit from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders for the year of HK$162,211,000 (period
ended 31 December 2001: net loss of HKS131,446,000)
and the weighted average of 1,556,243,668 (period
ended 31 December 2001: 1,431,873,113) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the net profit attributable to shareholders for the
year of HK$162,211,000, adjusted by additional interest
income of HK$6,459,000 assuming partly paid-up
preference shares had been fully paid up at the
beginning of the year before converted into ordinary
shares, and the proceeds of which were placed on 12-
month Hong Kong dollar fixed deposits earning interests
of 1% per annum. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
1,556,243,668 ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation; the
weighted average of 88,900 ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise of all share options during the year and the
weighted average 1,159,289,648 ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued on the deemed conversion

of all preference shares at the beginning of the year.

The diluted loss per share for the period ended 31
December 2001 has not been presented as there was
no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share during
the period ended 31 December 2001. The conversion
of the preference shares and the outstanding share
options would have an anti-dilutive effect on the basic

loss per share for the period ended 31 December 2001.

14.

BREF (BB

BREABANDRAFERREGETE
B467162,211,0008 T (BE=ZTT—F +
ZTR=+-HILLHBHHE: BEFE
131,446,000/ 7T) R AFEE BT ERER 2
I F 9 E01,556,243,668/% (B E—T T —
F+ZA=+—BLHME - 1,431,873,113

BOFE -

BREERMDEAFERREEGRF
#162,211,0007%8 7T & & 5 50 A B WA
6,459,000/ TIEREHE (RBER AR AL
AR RBRHEERERENHRT
EMEMFRETANREAZETLEBER
REFEIEF L) - BEFENTARZ
METHEAREFETREREF K
1,556,243,6681% 7 F A 2 AT H) & AR
RENEARBERITR2HEBRENREE
E81T 2 BBk 2 INHE T 15 86 88,9008%
PRENERERALRZEBELERT R
Bt BRR2MBETFHEN
1,159,289,6481% -

HRBE-_ZZ—F+_HA=1T—HIH
RBREAERIEIBEL XE B
TEZIZAMzBRETER - ARE
AREEMRITECEREGEZE T -
E+-A=T-BLULHAZERERES
AEREBETE -

Global China Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002 E




31 December 2002

Notes to Financial State

ents

15.

FIXED ASSETS 15. BEIEEE
Group
&
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
Land and Investment  improvements equipment Motor
buildings properties HE BH 2B vehicles Total
)% & RENE NERE e RE &it
HK$'000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS’000 HK$'000
TAT Fir Fir TAT TAT Fir
Cost or valuation: RAEREE
At 1 January 2002 RZFE_F
-A-H 396,801 - 4,231 407,800 1,022 809,854
Transfer 4 (36,301) 36,035 - - = (266)
Additions NE = = 3,272 49,568 133 52,973
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(note 37(c)) (B#37(c)) (59,858) - (1,857) (218,098) = (279,813)
Disposals HE (27,557) - = (19,149) (500) (47,2006)
Deficit on revaluation SREA (11,530) (737) - - - (12,267)
Exchange realignment ERRE 1,205 - (17) (2,258) = (1,130
At 31 December 2002 RZEECF
TR0 26,760 35,198 5,569 217,863 655 521,145
Analysis of cost or valuation: ~ RAESBEEN
At cost BRAR = = 5,569 217,863 655 124,087
At directors’ valuation REEHE 169,432 35,298 = = = 204,730
At 31 December 2002 it 3
professional valuation +=A=+-H
LEZME 93,328 - - - - 93,328
262,760 35,298 5,569 217,863 655 522,145
Accumulated depreciation: ~ EiHTE :
At 1 January 2002 RZFECE
-A-H - - 1,293 257,934 358 259,585
Transfer g3 (266) - - - - (266)
Provided during the year EREE 6,640 - 1,294 31,050 17 39,157
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(note 37(c)) (K##37(c) (683) - (252) (133,978) - (134,913)
Disposals ME (253) - - (18,488) (242) (18,983)
Write-back on revaluation B (6,452) = = = = (6,452)
Exchange realignment ERRE 1,014 - (72) (2,059) = (1,117
At 31 December 2002 RZFECF
t-A=1-H - - 2,263 134,459 289 137,011
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2002 RZFECF
+ZA=t-B 262,760 35,298 3,306 83,404 366 385,134
At 31 December 2001 R-EE-F
TZE=T-F 39,801 = 2,938 149,866 664 550,269
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15. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 15. EE&EE (&)
Company
KAF
Furniture,
Land and fixtures and
buildings  equipment Motor
Tk BKH£EB vehicles Total
BF & HE &5t
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
FET FET FET FET
Cost or valuation: KAESEHE :
At 1 January 2002 RZZZTZF
—A—H 8,100 515 521 9,136
Additions NE - 7 - 7
Disposals & - (11) = (11)
Surplus on revaluation EHBH (70) - - (70)
At 31 December 2002 RZZETZF
+=-B=+—8 8,030 511 521 9,062
Analysis of cost or valuation: BB S (EE S
At cost B AE - 511 521 1,032
At directors’ valuation REZZHE 8,030 - - 8,030
8,030 511 521 9,062
Accumulated depreciation: Rt E :
At 1 January 2002 MR-_TT_F
—H—H — 409 183 592
Provided during the year FNEE 167 67 104 338
Disposals k= - (10) = (10)
Write-back on revaluation  EfF#& @ (167) - - (167)
At 31 December 2002 R-_ZEZ-_F+—-A
=+—H = 466 287 753
Net book value: REFME
At 31 December 2002 R-_ZEZ-_F+_-A
=+—H 8,030 45 234 8,309
At 31 December 2001 R-_EZT—F+-A
=+—H 8,100 106 338 8,544
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15. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 15. BEEE (&)

The land and buildings of the Group included above ERAREE i REFIRTHIEE S

are held under the following lease terms: A
Hong Kong PRC Elsewhere Total
58 H Hitiw& &5t
HKS$’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
T FET FET FET
Freehold KA = = 93,328 93,328
Long term leases REHEE 22,402 1,280 = 23,682
Medium term leases FHIEE 145,750 - - 145,750
168,152 1,280 93,328 262,760

The land and buildings of the Company included above

ERARRB 2 L REFE T EEFH

are held under the following lease terms: A
Hong Kong PRC Total
BB H &t
HKS$’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
TFHET FHETT TFHET
Long term leases REHE - 1,280 1,280
Medium term leases FHEEE 6,750 = 6,750
6,750 1,280 8,030

lobal Chin Holdings Limited Annual R
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15.

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Certain of the Group’s land and buildings were valued
individually at 31 December 2002 by Chung, Chan &
Associates, independent professionally qualified valuers,
at an aggregate value of HK$93,328,000, on an open
market value and existing state basis. The Group’s
remaining land and buildings and all of the Company’s
land and buildings were valued individually at 31 July
2002 by Chung, Chan & Associates and Jones Lang
LaSalle Limited at an aggregate value of
HK$176,432,000 and HK$8,030,000, respectively, on an
open market value and existing state basis (the “July
Valuations”). Based on a letter dated 29 January 2003
issued by Chung, Chan & Associates and a letter dated
13 February 2003 issued by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
(the "Letters”), the directors are of the opinion that,
except for one of the Group’s properties which has its
value declined by HKS$7,000,000 during the period
between 31 July 2002 and 31 December 2002, the
differences between individual valuations of the
remaining land and buildings as at 31 July 2002 and 31
December 2002 are not significant and accordingly,
these land and buildings were stated at the directors’
valuation at HK$169,432,000 with reference to the July
Valuations and the Letters.

Had all the land and buildings of the Group and the
Company been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, the carrying values of
these properties would have been stated at
approximately HK$249,921,000 (2001: HK$434,805,000)
and HK$8,030,000 (2001: HKS$9,444,000), respectively.

An aggregate revaluation surplus of HK$9,849,000 (2001:
HK$3,449,000) and an aggregate revaluation deficit of
HK$14,927,000 (2001: HK$30,994,000) attributable to
the Group has been credited to the Group’s land and
buildings revaluation reserve and charged to the profit
and loss account, respectively. An aggregate revaluation
surplus attributable to the Company of HKS$97,000
(2001: deficit of HK$95,000) has been credited to the
Company’s profit and loss account.

15.

EEEE ()

AKREETIHRBFELAR-_FT_F
T A=T - HABUZXARMGEEME
ETRARMERRRERNMEERE K
93,328,000 T - AEBEHA LTI RIETF

UWRARBFALHERETFERR_-_ZT
“FELA=t-HhBETRHMETERELR
HmERRERDBERNMMEESE X
176,432,0007% 7. %2 8,030,000/ 7T ([+ A &
Bl  REBEGEETN_TT=F—H_-t
NBEBELZ A RMETR _-_TT=F_
At=R#L 2 &Mt (&)  EERA

BRAKEZ - BEBNXRIBER_ZT_F
TtA=+-HRE-_TT_F+-_A=+—
A i/ R {E7,000,0007% 7T 51 + H 8k 130 )2
BFTR-_ZET-_FLtA=+t—HE-ZTT
“FEt A=t BZEMNBEERLN
BRElt 2ELHEREBTFRELAR
1B R {12 E % 2 {£18169,432,0007% 7T 5
B o

MAEBRARRME L REFHERK
AERBFTERRENE  BZENE
Z IR ERE S B14)/5249,921,0008 T (= F
T — 4 : 434,805,000 7T) % 8,030,000/
T (ZZTZT— : 9,444,000 T) °

AEBZEMHARHBA 9,849,000 T (=

T—4F :3,449,000%5 7T) - &iﬁ@ﬁ%m =

14,927,0007% 7L (ZF 2 — 4 : 30,994,000

BT BEARIGARRE L RBTER

FEEREEARNEG - ARAZBMHBAR

£$£97,000/ T (ZTF — : E54h95,000/8
TO) Bt AR REBHER
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15.

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

At 31 December 2001, certain of the Group’s land and
buildings and equipment with an aggregate net book
value of approximately HKS$155,000,000 and
HK$6,583,000, respectively, were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28). At

31 December 2002, no fixed assets were pledged.

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong

Kong and are held under the following lease terms:

15.

BERE (#)
R-FF-£+-A=+-0 AKEE
T RIETRRAEZREFEAHIA &

#1155,000,0007% 7t 526,583,000/ 7T - 2
RIERAREMERTHBBEZER (HE
28) R-_TE_F+-_A=1+—RH Y&
BRENBEEEE -

ARERBEZERENFR TIHEFH
BA

HK$’000

FET

Long term leases REBAHEE 4,298
Medium term leases PHAE 31,000
35,298

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31 REEETHRENEFELR-_ZTZT_Ft
July 2002 by Chung, Chan & Associates and Jones Lang A=1T-—BPHBUEESEK ﬁfﬁﬁﬂiﬁiiﬁ

LaSalle Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at an aggregate value of HK$35,298,000, on
an open market value and existing state basis. Based
on the Letters, the directors are of the opinion that
the differences between valuations of these investment
properties as at 31 December 2002 and 31 July 2002
are not significant and, accordingly, these investment
properties were stated at the directors’ valuation with
reference to the professional valuations performed on
31 July 2002.

| China Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002
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15.

16.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

FIXED ASSETS (continued) 15. BEEE (&)
An aggregate revaluation deficit of HK$737,000 AEBEZ B[S £737,0008 T EA
attributable to the Group has been charged to the profit BaRME (ME7) -
and loss account (note 7).
The investment properties are leased to third parties BREWMERCLEHNETE=E  FBEH
under operating leases, further summary details of R B 7 3R BT 2 40(a) ©
which are included in note 40(a) to the financial
statements.
Further particulars of the Group’s land and buildings AEEz THREFERREEMEFBIR
and investment properties are included on pages 170 KEHRFE170E173E -
to 173 of this Annual Report.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. EBFXEE
Group
rEE
HKS$’000
FAET
Cost: B NER
Additions and at 31 December 2002 RERR-_ZEE-_F#+-A=1+—H 23,004
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: ZET I RAE
Amortisation provided during the year FRB BB 1,150
Impairment during the year recognised REZRBERZFARE
in the profit and loss account 6,704
At 31 December 2002 R-_ZEE-_F+-_F=+—H 7,854
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2002 R-_ZEE-_F+-_F=+—H 15,150
At 31 December 2001 RZZEZE—F+=ZA=+—H -
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17. GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL 17. BEEEH
The amounts of the goodwill and negative goodwill PR g 8 B ) A R il R i EE AR
capitalised as an asset or recognised in the consolidated BRMIEREESRERGEEERBRE
balance sheet, arising from the acquisition of RIBEREHENT
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities, are as
follows:
Group
rEE
Goodwill
arising on
acquisition Negative
Goodwill of jointly- goodwill
arising on controlled arising on
acquisition entities  acquisition
of (Note 20) of
subsidiaries WE LR subsidiaries
WENE EZHAEM s B8 Bt B
DAREE E4EZ2@EE LRFREXL
ZEE (Kt &t20) ZEEE
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
FAETL FAET FETL
Cost: B AR (E :
At beginning of year F1 5,952 16,130 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B /8 A A
(note 37(b)) (B1z£37(b)) 2,340 = =
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary Wi — M E A A
(note 37(d)) Wz (M E37(d)) - - (160,100)
At 31 December 2002 RZEEZF
+=-A=+—H 8,292 16,130 (160,100)
Accumulated amortisation and 2 EHERRE
impairment/ (recognition as income): (ERBEA)
At beginning of year F 4 - 1,463 -
Amortisation provided/ (recognised FREEEE
as income) during the year / (ERBEA) 1,050 5,376 (23,451)
Impairment provided during the year FARE 7,242 9,291 —
At 31 December 2002 RZZTZT-F
+=-A=+-AH 8,292 16,130 (23,451)
Net book value: AREFE(E
At 31 December 2002 RZZTZT-F
+=-B=+—A - - (136,649)
At 31 December 2001 RZZTZT—F
+=-A=+—H 5,952 14,667 —
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17.

18.

—EZE

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL (continued) 17. BEEEHE (&)
As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, on B EHRERM S ATl - RIRPEHE
the adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the BERAFEIN%E  AEBEELRBEHE
transitional provision of SSAP 30 that permitted negative Mﬂﬂ%w MZBEBRX  GXEFZZ
goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred prior —FMA-HREETZKBEREEZE
to 1 April 2001, to remain credited to the capital ?ﬁéﬁ BT NEARER -
reserve.
The aggregate amount of the negative goodwill “ET-FNA—BRIKBERBRRME
remaining in capital reserve, arising from the EZBREZBER_ZTT_F—H—H
acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1 April 2001, were N—_EE-_F+-_AR=+—B2HAE
HK$212,827,000 and HK$128,614,000, as at 1 January 212,827,0007% 7t % 128,614,000 7t + {134
2002 and 31 December 2002, respectively. BREBTERGEHENA -
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMEAR 2z
Company
AT
2002 2001
—BECF —EEF
HKS’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost SEEMKRG - BRERAE 115,258 115,258
Less: Provisions for impairment o ORERE (110,258) (110,258)
5,000 5,000
Due from subsidiaries JRE Lt B B 1 ) 338 1,362,680 1,030,764
Less: Provisions for amounts Ao WA /TAIE%f%
due from subsidiaries (318,134) (245,425)
1,044,546 785,339
Due to subsidiaries JE 11 BT B 1 Al 3038 (267,575) (25,214)
781,971 765,125

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

HfBARc B &R REER 28R
EEEERD -
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18.

19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2002 are set out in note 44 to the financial

statements.

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY

Group and Company
FEBRARAR

Unlisted shares, at cost
Less: Provision for impairment

B R E R

FLWBED  BEAE

18.

19.

REBLAR 2R ()
R-_EE_F+_A=+-—HZ2TEWNE

DRIFIBH N K T44 -

R-—BREEEHBREECHEBLARZR
&

2002 2001
—g®=F -T2 7F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FEL
36,000 36,000
(36,000) (36,000)

The investment represents the cost incurred by the
Company under an agreement completed in January
2000 (the "Agreement”) to acquire a 70% equity interest
in Artland International Limited ("Artland”), an
investment holding company incorporated in Hong Kong,
the sole asset of which is a 50% equity interest in
Sichuan Allday TV Development Co., Ltd. ("Sichuan
Allday”), a Sino-foreign equity joint venture established
in the PRC. At the balance sheet date, of the total
consideration of HK$36,000,000, the Company had paid
HK$18,000,000; the remaining HK$18,000,000 of the
original purchase consideration has been included as a

liability in other payables and accruals.

ited Annual Report 2002

ZERERBEARAIRE-EAR_ZTTE
F-RAxEmzwE ([ZHEl)  WEEE
EERERDR ([2E]) Z70% A w5 T E
HZRA - BE/—RRBEEMALL
REZEBRAR  HE-BEAHA —HE
FERIZTIAERELE — Oz
ARERBRARQA ([M)I12X]) 2 50%8
AHEs - REEH - 41 (B36,000,0007%
JTH - AR FIE % 1718,000,000% 7T - #4%E
18,000,000 7 2 RFE B REC A K&
NHRBAREAFRAEREE -




19.

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY

(continued)

Pursuant to the Agreement, the vendors are responsible,
inter alia, to procure for the appointment of the
Company’s representatives as directors of Sichuan
Allday. However, up to the date of approval of these
financial statements, the vendors have not been able
to honour their obligations under the Agreement,
including significantly the obligations relating to the
appointment of directors representing Artland, and
hence the Company, in Sichuan Allday. As a result, the
Group has been unable either to participate in the
management of its investment, or to obtain any
financial information of Sichuan Allday. Against this
background, the directors consider that in substance
the Group is unable to exercise effective control over
its investment as a whole and, accordingly, have

accounted for Artland as an unconsolidated subsidiary.

Although the Group had resumed discussion with the
PRC joint venture partner of Sichuan Allday, up to the
date of approval of these financial statements, the
Group had not been able to achieve any progress on
the discussion of cooperation. The Group has
commenced a legal action against the vendors during
the year for rescission of the Agreement made between
the parties and/or damages to be assessed. The vendors
then put forward a counterclaim against the Group for
the remaining consideration of HK$18,000,000.
According to a legal opinion, the Group has a good
arguable case against the counterclaim. However, as
the legal action is at its early stage and its outcome is
uncertain, the directors consider that it is prudent to
continue to carry a full provision of HK$36,000,000

against the Group’s interest in Artland.

19.

R-BABEEHREEZMBLIZR
i-4C-))

BEZRE BEHEEE(BREMEZEHE)
REARFZRREZEAOIIEZRZE
E-RM BEEHFHERREMEZR
"Rl BADREREZBEBRTRFLZ
Eff REENERABEN/IIZXRZME
REREBE(EMKKREARA)ZEF - A
b AEEAREZEEMBREZARZE
BE  TREDRFO)IERNEMFMEBKE
B-HEEBERT EERARFEHER

MAREHAEE 2 ARTHREEREREH
B AUBEEAREEAHIREE K
BREER

FEAREBEERERD)2ROPERE
CEBHER AN BEUFHBERR
Bz BRL  AEBDREERAKE
EAERSEMER - AEERNFARE
T ERERITH T AL BE R S
SRCBREEE  WEIREEARR
Bl R R E#25E18,000,000/8 7T - R\ ER
ER AREERNBEBHREEHFAK
@ AT ARFLRRFABETREEHE
ROBESHRARKDNEERBEERA
SENEE 2 #aF 2 236,000,000/ 7T
B -
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19.

20.

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY 19.

(continued)

As extracted from the unaudited management accounts,
the deficiency of assets of Artland as at 31 December
2002 was HKS$23,102,000 (2001: HK$23,041,000) and the
Group’s share thereof was HKS$16,171,000 (2001:
HK$16,129,000). The post-acquisition loss of Artland
for the year ended 31 December 2002 was HKS$61,000
(period ended 31 December 2001: HK$17,000) and the
Group’s share thereof was HK$42,000 (period ended 31
December 2001: HK$12,000).

No guarantee had been given by the Group to Artland
or its creditors and thus no material contingent liability

in respect thereof is considered likely to arise.

R-—BREEEHBREECHEBLARZR
% (#&)

BERCEZEREER N2+
ZTRA=+—-H EEZEEBAR
23,102,000 7T (=TT — 4 : 23,041,000
BIT) - AEEEIGEEER16,171,0007 7T
(ZZTT—4 :16,129,0008 ) - BHE—
EE-_F+-_A=1+—HLEE EEZ
WEE% EBER61,0008 T (BE-_TT—F
+ZA=+—HIEEE : 17,0004 7T) - &
EEELHSEE4,0008T (BE-TZT—
F+ZA=+—HI1LHMA : 12,0008 T) °

ARAKEYEAEEHLEEREAZDIE
R HESERLMEEEMENL
REE-

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES 20. REREH AR zER
Group
rEH
2002 2001
—BF=F —FT—F
HKS’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
Share of net assets EIEEESE 161,560 181,371
Goodwill on acquisition (note 17) REUWBEL Z@E (Kfit17) - 14,667
161,560 196,038
Due from jointly-controlled entities J& 4 £ [74% #i| 2 7] 2 I8 182,386 417,377
Less: Provisions for amounts due & : BRI HI A A
from jointly-controlled HIB 2 BB
entities (108,586) (337,113)
73,800 80,264
235,360 276,302
| Chin Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002
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20.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(continued)

Except for an amount of HK$3,300,000 due from a
jointly-controlled entity which bears interest at 5% per
annum, the balances due from jointly-controlled
entities are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed

terms of repayments.

The Group’s trade payable balance due to a jointly-
controlled entity is disclosed in note 27 to the financial

statements.

The balance due to a jointly-controlled entity was

unsecured, interest-free and was repaid during the year.

20.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

REARES ARz EE ()

BR — 2 FE W — M AR 2 I 2 §] 22 3,300,000
BITREARENRSE B - BUHKR
BEHARCESRRBER/RERERA - B
| E T ERY

AKERN—RARZEH AR ZEHER
REB MR E27THE ©

BN —MARZH AR ZRERBEERR
28 YERFAREE -
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled entities,

which are held indirectly through subsidiaries, are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/
registration
Business and operations
Name structure MK/
=L XBRE BRREELH
Beelink Information Corporate Mainland
Science & Technology o China
Co., Ltd. FR A
BEAERRK
BARAT
TRMETRTE Corporate Mainland
BMTBR AR # ¥ China
B A i,
b REE B B B E 4 Corporate Mainland
BT AR AR 4 ¥ China
B A

lobal China Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002

20. REREHIE2ES (F)

AEERBMBARBMEREZEEHXA
EHIABZHBWT

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable

to the Group Principal
FEEESRA activities
Aok TEER
2002 2001
—2%-F _TTF
40 40 Provision of technical

support and
consultancy services
for Internet service
providers
REBBRBGHERRM
B s & Rk AR

49 49 Provision of
consultancy services
on film production
and sale of film
broadcasting rights
RETRERMER R
BRHEEZENE

20 20 Software development
B
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20.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
registration
Business and operations
Name structure HEMKEL
% E3 2T BERKELH
TR EEHEER Corporate Mainland
B BR A A 13 3 China
B 3
T REEREHE Corporate Mainland
BEARAA = China
B 3
Premier Printing Corporate Hong Kong
Group Limited # % B
Mz R B EE
BRAF #
Sing Tao Daily Limited Corporate Canada
13 3 mex
Sing Tao Newspapers Corporate Canada
(Canada 1988) Limited 1o % meEx
Singdeer Joint Unincorporated Canada
Venture # Jeafit kL nex

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

20. RAREZEGAT 2z (8)

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable
to the Group

AREEERAE
ARl
2002 2001
—R¥-F -TTF
55 55
70 -
50 37
25 19
50 37
50 37

Principal
activities

TREH

Provision of value-added
PRC business
information

REFEBFEEEN

Provision of
on-line and off-line
corporate and
vocational training
and related services
RERERFBERER
BE 5| R E RS

Printing
E R

Newspaper Publishing
WEELT

Newspaper production
RESHE

Hotel operations
BIERE

The financial statements of the above jointly-controlled
entities are coterminous with those of the Group except
for Singdeer Joint Venture (“Singdeer”) which has a
financial year ended 31 March 2002. The Group’s
financial statements have taken into account the results
of Singdeer between 1 April 2002 and 31 December
2002.

PAE S EIZEHI A EF - Br T Singdeer Joint
Venture ([Singdeer |) 2 BEER_Z
Z_F-A=-t+—HREN HtzH5
BEREEAHEREEER - KREEZH
BIRER DKL B IE Singdeer - T T~ F
A—BZE-ZT-_F+-_A=+—Hz%

& e
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20.

21.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(continued)

The above table lists the jointly-controlled entities of
the Group which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other jointly-controlled entities would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

# Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst

& Young International member firms.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

20. RHEFEHIT2ES (F)

EERRLRIBZ2ASEARES D
A IBRPEAKREAFEZRE  HA
RAKEFEECEIRZRND - ESRAH
BREEMARESHARNZFBEESRE
BRIUEK -

AR = ATk Ernst &
RIFTE o

# WHBLKE
Young International Z % 8 2

21, REEQATZ2ER

Group Company
rEE KA F
2002 2001 2002 2001
—BR-F ZTT-F -BE-F -TET—F
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRS -
BRAE - - 8,979 10,729
Less: Provision for impairment o ORERE - - (8,979) (10,729)
Share of net assets EIEEESE 5,488 5,320 - =
Due from associates R i Bt = 1) B 3008 17,528 21,358 - —
Less: Provisions for amounts due & : FEIR ‘9‘?%’&
from associates IR R (10,224) (11,137) = =
12,792 15,541 A -
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, B ERNR 2 RIBEAERR - 2B R
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. EETERY -
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—EFE-F+-A=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21, RBgELR &R (8)
Particulars of the principal associate are as follows: FTERLRACHFBOT
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interest
registration attributable Principal
Business and operations to the Group activity
Name structure HEMRYL/ AEEEGERE
a8 EBEE BREREE I BEok TEEE
2002 2001
Z8B-F _TT-F
Dragon Fly Assets Corporate British Virgin 50* 37*  Investment holding
Limited oS Islands wEER
RERLES
* Held indirectly through a subsidiary * H—RERBAREERS
The above table lists the associate of the Group which, EERALRIN ZAEBBE QR £
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected EREAREERFE 2 EE KK E
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion BFEECIESRD - EZRAFARSF
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other HpBMERA I HBESRREARNTE -

associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.
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22. INVESTMENTS 22. RE&
Long term investments, at cost RERE  BEAE
Group
r5E
2002 2001
—BE-F -t
HKS$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Listed equity investments: EmRERE
Hong Kong B& - 3,279
Elsewhere H {3 [= 872 872
872 4,151
Less: Provision for impairment W ORER A (304) =
568 4,151
Unlisted equity investments FLEHMBRAKRE 4,999 4,999
Unlisted debt securities FETEEES 3,820 4,320
8,819 9,319
Less: Provision for impairment o ORERE (2,327) =
6,492 9,319
7,060 13,470
Market value of listed equity DAk 1= Bk A (B R &R E A BR
investments included above ZEmERARZTE
at cost less impairment 568 4,141
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—EFE-F+-A=+—H

22. INVESTMENTS (continued) 22. BE ()
Short term investments, at fair value EHERE BAAEE
Group
rEE
2002 2001
—BF-F -t
HK$’000 HKS’000
FER FET
Listed equity investments: ERRAKRE
Hong Kong &5 21,371 36,562
Elsewhere H oo & 973 1,034
22,344 37,596
Market value of listed investments EFHiR&ME 22,344 37,596
23. INVENTORIES 23. FE
Group
rEE
2002 2001
—BE=F -t
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FHET FAET
Raw materials JR M 13,411 43,517
Work in progress RS - 7,611
Finished goods 2K 3,599 3,637
Inventories held for resale BrEEE FE 10,359 17,361
27,369 72,126
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during EAEEBRAAIHEHZEFERK A
the year amounted to HK$260,080,000 (period ended 260,080,000 ¢ (Blz2=—EZT—F+-A=
31 December 2001: HK$389,913,000). +—HI1EHR - 389,913,000/8 T) °
The carrying amount of inventories at net realisable TRBRAUEBE ZEIRE FEEEES
value included in the above is HKS$4,045,000 (2001: 4,045,000 7 (ZZZ —F : 4,307,000%
HK$4,307,000). JT) °
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Notes to Financial Statements

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90
days to its trade customers. An aged analysis of trade
and bills receivables, as at the balance sheet date,

based on the payment due date, is as follows:

24, EWRRREE

AEERTESHEF T30 290 X2
Ef-n&E8ER  RAPAINR ZER
EREEBRZKREMT

Group

rEE
2002 2001
—BF-F —EE-F
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Current to 30 days BNERZ 30 X 133,371 210,247
31 to 60 days 31 260 X 21,967 12,491
61 to 90 days 61 £90 X 11,350 9,239
91 to 120 days 91 £120 X 3,774 5,763
Over 120 days 120 XA E 6,826 7,626
177,288 245,366

Less: Provisions for bad and B RBREE

doubtful debts (6,076) (12,917)
171,212 232,449

25. PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS
The pledged time deposits were used to secure general

banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28) and a

jointly-controlled entity.
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. BeRkBRE&EEER
Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2002 2001 2002 2001
—EE-F —ITT-F ZBE-HF —ITT-F
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000 HKS’000
FET FEx FHET FE T
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITHE 167,386 145,588 347 6,577
Time deposits EHER 591,619 140,095 73,167 —
759,005 285,683 73,514 6,577

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances

of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$15,739,000 (2001: HKS$6,060,000). The

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,

however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange

Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,

Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,

the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

REER  RAEENARBREMZRS
R RA1T 4 #% £15,739,0008 T (ZEF —
F : 6,060,000 7T) - ARBURAIEHAK
MAHEMER - AWM - RIEPEXEZS
EEEGHNRGE EERNEEER
EoASERERERBERBETIEER
BZROIBARBLBASEMER -
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27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27. ERRIRRE
An aged analysis of trade and bills payables, as at the REER  REBADTZEAERZE
balance sheet date, based on the payment due date, is BRI
as follows:
Group
2002 2001
= i —EE-F
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Current to 30 days BIEIZ=30 & 58,412 84,455
31 to 60 days 31 260 X 3,515 13,810
61 to 90 days 61 £90 X 1,145 5,581
91 to 120 days 91 £120 X 225 520
Over 120 days 120 KA £ 11,334 8,262
74,631 112,628
Included in the balance is HK$10,042,000 (2001: N EERBEEDRIRERSH  EAN—
HK$18,844,000) due to a jointly-controlled entity arising 5 £ B2 52 7]10,042,0008 T (Z T —
from printing services transactions, which is payable % : 18,844,000/ ) 2 5 IH - HIEAR L
in accordance with the credit terms granted by the RAEGHARMEZEESRS -

jointly-controlled entity.
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28.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28. MEEBITHEE
Group
KEE
2002 2001
—gg=f&  -TT-&
HKS$’000 HKS’000
FHET FET
Secured bank loans repayable: BERTHEEECBEARTER :
Within one year or on demand —FRYEERMNE 9,675 29,206
In the second year $_F - 3,000
In the third to fifth years, FE=ZFERF
inclusive (BREEMF) - 4,250
9,675 36,456
Portion classified as current GHEARBEE NG
liabilities (9,675) (29,206)
Long term portion R EE D - 7,250

The Group’s bank loans are secured by certain of the
Group’s pledged time deposits with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$9,675,000 (2001: HK$26,206,000)

(note 25).

At 31 December 2001, the Group’s bank loans were
also secured by mortgages over certain of the Group’s
land and buildings, with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$155,000,000 as at 31 December
2001 and floating charge over certain of the Group’s

equipment with an aggregate carrying amount of

approximately HK$6,583,000 as at 31 December 2001

(note 15).
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AEBZRTERAASERREEE
9,675,000% 7T (ZZTZ—4 : 26,206,000
70) 2 B E HE SR (f5E25)

R-ZFE—F+-_A=+—0 XEEZ
BRITEFHAEER_TT-F+_-_A=
+— H 4 (& £7155,000,000% 7T 2 & T +
WEBFZREBRAEER _TT -5+
“A=1+—HRmEEX6,583,0008 T &
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Notes to Financial Statements

29.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its furniture and fixtures

for its media business. These leases are classified as

finance leases and have remaining lease terms ranging

from four to five years.

At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum

lease payments under finance leases and their present

values, were as follows:

29. MEBANENRE

AEBHBEERBEB2ETRMRE

=

CREHNBBERY BT ZHEA

MEERFEANE o

REER  REREANZARZERLE
ERE

REBBEMT

Group
rEH
Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum Minimum lease lease
lease lease  payments payments
payments payments 2002 2001
2002 2001 BEHE KEHE2
REHEE HEHE: ZEBE ZBE
ZEE-F —TT-F ZBBZH _—ZTT—F
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
FHET TFET FHET FET
Amounts payable: JE IR -
Within one year —FR" 196 - 142 =
In the second year FEF 196 - 153 -
In the third to fifth years, FE-ZERF
inclusive (BREEEME) 543 = 489 =
Total minimum finance HEMEHSBE
lease payments 935 = 784 —
Future finance charges ARBMEER (151) =
Total net finance lease payables & &7 4 /& i 28
BFE 784 =
Portion classified as current GEANBER
liabilities Z B (142) —
Long term portion =3-iE) 642 —
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LONG TERM OTHER PAYABLES

The balance represents a payable to a joint venture
partner of a jointly-controlled entity which is
unsecured, interest-free and payable on or before 7
December 2005.

DEFERRED INCOME

As part of the disposal arrangement of the Disposed
Assets (note 8), the Group entered into a lease
agreement with South China Printing Company (1988)
Limited (“South China”), an ex-subsidiary of the Group,
to continue to lease certain of the Group’s investment
properties to South China for a period of five years
commencing from 19 April 2002 (the “Lease Period”)
at a nominal consideration of HK$1. The aggregate
rental value of these properties for the Lease Period
was estimated by the directors to be HK$24,583,000
by reference to the then existing market rate. The
directors consider that the lease agreement was entered
into as part of the disposal arrangement of the Disposed
Assets. Accordingly, such rental value has been excluded
from the gain on disposal of the Disposed Assets (note
8) and recognised as a deferred income in the balance
sheet. The deferred income is amortised and credited
to the profit and loss account over the Lease Period on
a straight-line basis.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

Hit REMENRE

BREENT-MAREHARZA S
EUH - REARER  £BRAR-T
THETALARZAES -

B A

EBLEEE (M8 cHERHEH I
5 o A& E R B 2D FSouth China
Printing Company ([ South China]) &] 32 —
B - &18 7L 2R EMSouth China
HEETAEE 2 KRENE BA-TZ=
FUA+NABRAEHAF ([AHOBM]) -
BEELZRER2TSMNERETZED
ERHA IR 2 8718 524,583,000 T °
EERRITUHABZERLEEELLE
ZHEP B MZHEELEFALE
BE (38 cHER=N - MREERRE
RERBELWA - BRRACEHEZIR
ERFRBEABHEFABEER -

Group

rEE

2002

—BEC-F

HK$’000

FET

Arising during the year FRNESE 24,583
Less: Credited to the profit and B RFRFABER

loss account during the year (3,441)

Balance as at 31 December 2002 RZEBEE-_F+_A=+—B &% 21,142

Portion classified as current liabilities BEARDEEZIHH (4,917)

Long term portion 3= 16,225
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Notes to Financial Statements

32.

33.

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

32. REBRBEBE

Group

AEHE
2002 2001
—EECF —EEF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of year/period  F 4]/ Hi# & & 5,608 11,616
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37(c)) HEMRB AR (F337(c)) (625) =
Charge for the year (note 7) FREE (H27) 2,163 =
Write-back during the period AR E - (2,929)
Payments during the year/period FR/EHAEHK (4,517) (3,092)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A& 44 13
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—H 2,673 5,608

The Group provides for the probable future long service
payments expected to be made to employees under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, as further
explained under the heading "Employee benefits” in
note 3 to the financial statements. The provision is
based on the best estimate of the probable future
payments which have been earned by the employees
from their services to the Group to the balance sheet
date.

ASEREEERBHIINBEIRLLT
AEEXNZRBMRBEELEE  H15
FAMBHRRMEIMEERMN] & - BE
LREREREEEEEARNAKEREMLRS
FTERER B R R BR 2 AEfA AT -

DEFERRED TAX 33. EEZEBE

Group

r5EE
2002 2001
= —EE-F
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of year/period ] /Hi¥ & 7,380 9,005
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37 (c)) HEK B (A:£37(c)) (6,886) =
Credit for the year/period (note 12)  FR/HR A (Af7F12) (491) (1,631)
Exchange realignment B 5 3R & (3) 6
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H - 7,380
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33.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33.

The principal components of the Group’s provision for
deferred tax, and the net deferred tax asset position
not recognised in the financial statements, are as

follows:

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

EIEH R ()

AEERENERGEFEHEERRRN
AMBHREABRAZELHIEEREFEN
T

Provided Not provided
ERE el R 1% 4

2002 2001 2002 2001
28 —_TT-F ZBB-F _TT—F
HKS$’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000
FHET TFHET FHET FHETT
Accelerated depreciation allowances  fERT&E 2 Fi % 445 7,261 5,826 9,609
Tax losses B EE - - (131,641)  (125,780)
Others HAth (445) 119 - (2,904)
- 7,380 (125,815) (119,075)

No provision has been made for taxes which would
arise on the remittance to Hong Kong of retained profits
of overseas companies as it is not anticipated that

these amounts will be remitted in the near future.

The potential tax benefits attributable to tax losses of

ARBHEII AR ZEFRMERHAR

SEAEE AUYBERZERAEER

RAIEL 2 HARE -

ARETHEBARRBERBHEER

certain subsidiaries have not been recognised as they
are not expected to be utilised in the foreseeable

future.

The revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings and
investment properties do not constitute timing
differences and, consequently, the amount of potential

deferred tax thereon has not been quantified.

BRSESETRERATESR ALY
W RER -

AEBELHERBTREENEZERL A
BREZ  RYBAEFRECRLENE
ZEE -
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ents

33.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33.

The principal components of the Company’s net
deferred tax asset position not recognised in the

financial statements are as follows:

EEBIE (&)

ENNGIIC NN R St
EFEZEBZRMHMOT

BEEH AR

Not provided

15 oK 1 4
2002 2001
—BF-F —EE-F
HKS$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Accelerated depreciation MEFE T
allowances 720 30
Tax losses HBEE (4,696) (4,163)
(3,976) (4,133)

The revaluations of the Company’s land and buildings
do not constitute timing differences and, consequently,
the amount of potential deferred tax thereon has not

been quantified.
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SHARE CAPITAL 34, BRXK
2002 2001
—EEC-F —ET—F
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Authorised: EERA -
4,708,513,092 ordinary shares 4,708,513,092f% = Ik E &
of HK$0.10 each 0.10 BTz Ldk 470,851 470,851
1,291,486,908 5% redeemable cumulative 1,291,486,908/% & X @ &
convertible preference shares of 0.10 Btz 5% 2B EE
HK$0.10 each AERELER 129,149 129,149
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEBETRAERE :
1,818,086,074 (2001: 1,470,345,273) 1,818,086,074 (—ZTZE —4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,470,345,273)
EREE010 Bz TEM 181,809 147,035
Issued and partly paid: EETRSHHERAE :
1,123,486,908 (2001: 1,159,486,908) 1,123,486,908 (—ZZT —F :
5% redeemable cumulative convertible 1,159,486,908)
preference shares of HK$0.10 each BRREE0.10 BL25%E T
A & [0 7 #2418 S5 IR 71,768 74,068
253,577 221,103
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Notes to Financial State

ents

34.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

During the period ended 31 December 2001 and the
year ended 31 December 2002, there were the following

movements in the Company’s share capital:

(a) Ordinary shares
(i) On 20 June 2001, Luckman paid up the
remaining 90% of the cash subscription price
of HKO0.6388 per share for 132,000,000
preference shares so as to enable it to
exercise the conversion rights attached to
these fully paid-up preference shares. The
net proceeds received by the Company
thereof amounted to approximately
HK$75,889,000 and such conversion resulted
in 132,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company being issued to Luckman and
credited as fully paid. The proceeds were

used for working capital purpose.

(ii)  During the period ended 31 December 2001,
the subscription rights attaching to 226,000
share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$0.4032 per share,
resulting in the issue of 226,000 shares of
HKS$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$92,000.
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B (&)
HE-_ZZ—F+-_A=+—HILHERK
BHE_TZ-_F+_-_R=1+—RHIFEZ
ZIN/NETR &N =) B (N

(a) EER

(if)

R-ZZET-FXA=-+AH"
Luckman X f4132,000,000 A%
FHR0.6388FE L2 BARBT
Z90%R & REE - UEITHZ
R IR KRB ST AR TR 2
B o AR AR 2 RIEF
%8 ££4975,889,000/% 7T © 1M i
RMEBEERERADAM
Luckman #77132,000,000 A%
ARFIRBBEZMEBR - F7
SHRIERELEEES -

BE_ZZ—F+-_HA=+—
B IEHIR 0 226,000 17 B8 A% 42
MELRBREZREEER
0.4032 L7 {E - # M & 17
226,000 R FREEO0.10% 7T
2R RAOBRAXCBRE
KR8 492,000% 7T °
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34.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(@)

Ordinary shares (continued)

(iff)

(iv)

On 3 July 2002,

agreements were entered into between the

three subscription

Company and Concord Fortune Limited,
CyberTime Limited and Novel Investments
(Overseas) Limited (the “Subscribers”)
whereby each of the Subscribers agreed to
subscribe for 41,500,000 new ordinary
shares in the Company of HK$0.10 each for
cash at HKS0.6388 each at an aggregate cash
consideration of HKS$79,531,000. The
proceeds were raised for working capital

purpose.

Pursuant to a conditional securities
exchange offer (the "Offer”) announced by
the Company on 11 July 2002, the Company
issued 187,240,801 new ordinary shares of
HKS$0.10 each at issue prices ranging from
HK$0.32 to HKS0.40 per ordinary share for
an aggregate
HKS$63,859,000, for the purpose of acquiring

consideration of

the remaining 25.5% equity interests in Sing
Tao Media Holdings Limited (“Sing Tao
Media”) then held by the minority
shareholders of Sing Tao Media. After the
completion of the Offer, Sing Tao Media
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Details of the Offer are included
in the Company’s circular dated 30 August
2002.

34.

BA (&)

()
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BER (&)

(iif)

(iv)

RZZEZ_F+H=H &R
& 2 Concord
Limited * CyberTime Limited
K Novel
(Overseas) Limited ([ % |)
FIVCZIERBEGE  RBER
EXBNE20.6388% T - B
BeRES £79,531,0007%
JT + R §841,500,0000% & %
010B T2 ARAMERAK
FISRERELEEES -

Fortune

Investments

BEAEER-_ZTT_F+A
T—BAMZEREARER
(T#&l) - ARRINEARE
63,859,000/ T iR E1TE SR
TEAR0.328 T E0.408 7T %
17187,240,8011% B 20.10% 7T
ERER  BEKBERA
Sing Tao Media Holdings
Limited ([Sing Tao Medial) 2
D H R R BT A R Sing Tao
Mediagk T25.5%MR 1 - &7
Fk 1% + Sing Tao Mediafk A7 A
AZ2EMBAR - BEER
ZHBERARAR_TEZ
ENA=ZTHEEZBE -
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 34, BRAX (8)

LER (2)

(a) Ordinary shares (continued) (a)

| Chin

(v)

Holdings Limit

On 19 July 2002, on a conditional basis,
Luckman exercised the conversion rights
attached to 36,000,000 preference shares
to subscribe for 36,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company. On 30 December 2002,
Luckman paid up the remaining 90% of the
cash subscription price of HK$0.6388 per
share for 36,000,000 preference shares so
as to enable it to exercise the conversion
rights attached to these fully paid-up
preference shares. The additional proceeds
received by the Company thereof amounted
to approximately HK$20,696,000 and such
conversion resulted in 36,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company being issued
to Luckman and credited as fully paid. The
proceeds were used for working capital

purpose.

Annual Report 2002

(v)

RZZZ-_FtA+AhA -
Luckman® f& f 17 &
36,000,000f% & 5 A% 7B 5 2
HRuarE REXLQA
36,000,000/ @k - R=F
ZE-_F+ZH=1H

Luckman# 2 & % 0.6388% 7T
Z.36,000,0000% 2 5t 1% #2 T 90%
ZHE A TEZEHREL
RO A 2 RAAKE - RRTREF
IR cBAMNRENDA
20,696,000 7T + M & X #
Al BN A & [ Luckman® 17
36,000,0000% A BR % B &R <
HEBR o FTERIERAELE
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 34, RAE(E)
(a) Ordinary shares (continued) (@) TER ()
A summary of the transactions during the period HEZZZ—F+-A=1+—HLH
ended 31 December 2001 and year ended 31 MEEZE-TE-_F+=-A=+—H
December 2002 with reference to above IHEERBLLMARRBETERRKR
movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share EH o RXHUENT

capital is as follows:

Number of
ordinary Issued
shares ordinary Share
in issue share capital premium
B&1T B&1T account Total
LakEE TERA  RHOBER B
Notes HKS’000 HKS’000 HK$’000
fitzt FAT FAET FEL
At 1 April 2001 RZELT—F
mA—H 1,338,119,273 133,812 761,605 895,417
Conversion of preference RARER
shares (i) 132,000,000 13,200 71,121 84,321
Exercise of options TEERE (ii) 226,000 23 69 92
132,226,000 13,223 71,190 84,413
Share issue expenses BIOROHAY = = (47) (47)
At 31 December 2001 and RZEZT—F
1 January 2002 +=A=1+-8
R-ZZZT_F
—HA—H 1,470,345,273 147,035 832,748 979,783
Issue of new shares to MR LT
subscribers ik (iii) 124,500,000 12,450 67,081 79,531
Issue of new shares under RERE
the Offer BITHRMG (iv) 187,240,801 18,724 45,135 63,859
Conversion of preference RBAEER
shares (v) 36,000,000 3,600 19,396 22,996
347,740,801 34,774 131,612 166,386
At 31 December 2002 R-ZEE-F
+=B=+-H 1,818,086,074 181,809 964,360 1,146,169
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 34. B&X (&)
(b) Preference shares (b)y BER

Issued and
Number of partly paid
preference shares BETR
BEREAE Bn R
HKS$’000
TAT
At 1 April 2001 RZZEE-—FWA—H 1,291,486,908 82,500
Paid up preference shares BB LR 75,889
Converted into ordinary shares HgBELmik (132,000,000) (84,321)

At 31 December 2001 and RZET—F

1 January 2002 +=-A=+—8
R_ZET_F

—H—H 1,159,486,908 74,068
Paid up preference shares BB LR 20,696
Converted into ordinary shares H#AEmR (36,000,000) (22,996)

At 31 December 2002 R-ZZE_F
+=A=+-8 1,123,486,908 71,768

During the year ended 31 March 2001, RBE-_TZ—F=A=1+—HItF

| Chin

1,291,486,908 preference shares were issued at
a cash subscription price of HKS$0.6388 per
preference share to Luckman, and had been partly
paid up as to 10% of the subscription price.
132,000,000 and 36,000,000 of such preference
shares were fully paid up and converted into
ordinary shares during the period ended 31
December 2001 and the year ended 31 December
2002, respectively. At 31 December 2002, there
were 1,123,486,908 preference shares in issue,
and such preference shares were partly paid up

as to 10% of the subscription price.

Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002

&+ 1,291,486,908 R B £ R E B H
SRBETRO.638BTLHEITT
Luckman - ZEEEREHNRER
10%8) B 5%+ E #132,000,000/% &
36,000,000 BEBE A FIRNEES
ZZ-F+ZA=T—HLBERE
E-TT_F+-_A=+—HIFE
NERRHK  TEXBRREBR - R
—ZEE-F+-A=+—H " ' BE1T
1,123,486,9080 Bk - Mz E@E
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34.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Preference shares (continued)

The holders of the preference shares may elect
to advance to the Company all or part of moneys
uncalled or unpaid on any such preference shares.
However, the Company is not permitted to make
calls with respect to amounts unpaid on such

partly paid preference shares.

The holders of preference shares are entitled to
fixed cumulative preferential dividends at the rate
of 5% per annum provided that the preference

shares have been fully paid up.

The preference shares are convertible into new
ordinary shares of the Company upon being fully
paid up, in the period between 20 July 2000 and
19 July 2002, in the ratio of one new ordinary
share for every preference share. As at 31
December 2002,

168,000,000 preference shares into ordinary

Luckman had converted

shares upon the relevant preference shares being

paid up.

In addition, the preference shares are redeemable
at any time by their holders for the amount paid
up together with any arrears or accruals of the
fixed cumulative preferential dividend on the
preference shares, subject to the provisions of

the Companies Act of Bermuda.

34.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

BA (&)

(b)
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BEABRFEAEATERRERARRIRMZ
HEEIRIPN EE S EL-F Al
oo R - ARA A FRZFBHH
FE PR B 48 O B AR AR AR R

BEBRBEAGCHRELBRBN -
RlEREIREF RS Bt BHEEZ
BREABEKE -

RZEZEZFLA-THEZZTE =
F+ATNBHE BERAEER
Hig - BRAME—HE -0 Al A8 A
APRFEER RZTZE=F+=
B=+—H8 ' Luckman 7 & ft
168,000,000/ B L 2 lx# 18 « B

REZEBERAABERR -

BAN - EBRERTENEXRR
T BEERAEATRERERBRK
EitzBEREERBEREBEECH
(PA-FA Y &N
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b) Preference shares (continued)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 2
January 2003, the Company received a redemption
notice from Luckman, requiring the Company to
redeem all the outstanding preference shares in
issue of the Company registered in the name of
Luckman at a redemption price of HK$0.06388
per preference share, being its partly paid up
capital (the “Redemption”). Upon the completion
of the Redemption, the share capital and the net
assets of the Company and the Group were
reduced by HK$71,768,000.

(c) Share options
Details of the Company’s share option schemes
and the share options issued under the scheme
are included in note 35 to the financial

statements.

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

SSAP 34 was adopted during the year, as explained in
note 2 and under the heading “Employee benefits” in
note 3 to the financial statements. As a result, these
detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s share
option schemes are now included in the notes to the
financial statements. In the prior year, these disclosures
were included in the Report of the Directors, as their

disclosure is also a requirement of the Listing Rules.
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

On 14 June 1996, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Old Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible persons including
the employees and executive directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries. The exercise period of the
options granted under the Old Scheme is determinable
by the directors, and commences after a certain holding
period and ends on the tenth anniversary of the date

of grant of the options.

The maximum number of options may be granted which
would result in the aggregate number of shares issued
or issuable under the Old Scheme, may not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the time
of granting options. The maximum number of options
which may be granted to any eligible person should
not exceed 25% of the total number of options which
may be granted under the Old Scheme at the date of
granting options to such person. The exercise price of
options pursuant to the Old Scheme is determinable by
the directors, but must be the higher of 80% of the
average closing price of the Company’s shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the grant of the options,

or the nominal value per share.

35.
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

At the beginning of the year, there were 85,306,000
options outstanding under the Old Scheme, which
entitled the holders to subscribe for shares of the
Company at any time during the periods ranging from
25 September 2000 to 23 December 2011. The
subscription prices payable upon the exercise of these
options ranged from HK$0.3528 to HKS$1.35, subject to

adjustment.

During the year, the Company granted a total of 400,000
share options under the Old Scheme. The share options
granted entitle the holders to subscribe for shares of
the Company at any time during periods ranging from
1 June 2002 to 21 March 2012. The subscription price
per share payable upon the exercise of these options
is HKS0.282, subject to adjustment.

During the year, no share option granted under the Old
Scheme was exercised, and 23,324,000 share options
granted under the Old Scheme with exercise prices
ranging from HKS$0.3528 to HKS$1.35 lapsed during the

year.

No cash consideration was received by the Company

for the options granted during the year.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2002, the Old
Scheme was terminated and a new share option scheme

(the *New Scheme”) was adopted.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35. BRESE (&)

The following is a summary of the New Scheme: A BT

1. Purpose: The New Scheme seeks to 1. BAY MEEMAHEREE
recognise and acknowledge AT AT ER SR
the contributions or ZER - RMEEEE
potential contributions made BATEEEERRES
or to be made by the BMEMBNREAEH -
qualified persons to the W EH AR EE R
Group, to motivate the BRNzEBZEERA
qualified persons to optimise TRESREEZH
their performance and & o
efficiency for the benefit of
the Group, and to maintain
or attract business
relationship with the
qualified persons whose
contributions are or may be
beneficial to the growth of
the Group.

2.  Participants: (i) any part-time or full 2. SEE (i) AEBEKE QAT
time employee or B & A R 2
officer of any member KRB EBESRHE
of the Group or of any g
associate;

(ii) any director (executive (i) REBEKEARIHE
or non-executive) of E{ B & A R
any member of the BE (RTHIENT
Group or of any EE) 5%

associate; or
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2.  Participants:

(continued)

3. Total number of
shares available
for issue and
percentage of
issued share

capital:

4. Maximum
entitlement of
each participant:

lobal Chin

(iii) any supplier, agent,

customer, business
associate, distributor,
professional or other
adviser of, or
consultant or contractor
to, any member of the

Group.

The total number of shares
available for issue under the
New Scheme as at 31
December 2002 was
147,034,527 shares (including
options for 650,000 shares
that have been granted but
not yet lapsed or exercised)
which represented
approximately 8.09% of the
issued share capital of the
Company at 31 December
2002.

Unless separately approved
by shareholders in a general
meeting in the manner as
prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the total number of
shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of
option granted to each
qualified person (including
both exercised and
outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares then

in issue.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35. BREE (&)
5.  Period within The period during which an 5. WERE  BEHETEGRE 71T
which the shares  option may be exercised in B 15 ERERE 2 B AE
must be taken up: accordance with the terms of Hifg - B3 kAT R 2 B
the New Scheme shall be the A - E SR L AR
period set out in the relevant BERERLBBRETSE
offer letter provided that & e

such period must expire no
later than the tenth
anniversary of the date on

which it is granted.

6.  Minimum period To be determined by the 6. BRER HESET  TEHRE
for which an directors and included TERMA EEEAG-
option must be in the relevant offer BFEZ
held before it can letters. RRERE

be exercised:

7. Amount payable  Nil 7. B@E¥gE  Eo
on application or W R
acceptance and the ZERR
payment period: BRMAR
HiRR
8.  Basis of The exercise price will be 8. BEAME HAFEHREFET
determining the  determined by the directors BzEE: HUTIREERBE:
exercise price: and shall be the highest of:
(i) the closing price of the (i) REBBBERE
Company’s shares as 2 HARRABRMG
stated on the Stock EHMRZMEA K
Exchange’s daily BRAT 2 Wm
quotation sheets on the & :

date of grant of the

relevant options;
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

8.  Basis of
determining the
exercise price:

(continued)

9.  Remaining life of

the New Scheme:
10. Options granted

and lapsed during

the year:

lobal Chin

Holdings Limited Annual R

(i) the average of the
closing prices of the
Company’s shares as
stated on the Stock
Exchange’s daily

quotation sheets for the

five trading days
immediately preceding
the date of the grant of

the relevant options; or

(iii) the nominal value of

the Company’s shares.

The New Scheme will expire
on 27 May 2012.

During the year ended 31
December 2002, a total of
1,454,000 options were
granted to employees of the
Group pursuant to the New
Scheme, of which 804,000
options lapsed and 650,000
options remained outstanding
with exercise period from 6
August 2002 to 2 June 2012
and exercise price of
HK$0.40.

rt 2002

10.

BRETE (&)

8. BEE
Bz EE:
(%)

Hat &l
Ferm

FAKH
BB Z
WP

(i) REBBAEKRER
A AERSHE R
DB BB A
BRBEEZFY
W E

(i) ANABRHEE -

HHBBERN-_E——4F
EFA-t+tHBHER-

HE-_TE_&F+_-A
=+—BLtEE K&
BREMEMES K
HeBRELY A
1,454,000 + H &
804,0000 B &K% + M
650,00017 = AR AT 2 B
BEIAR-_TE-FN
ARRBEZE—ZFRX
A Z B EAfR1T £ (80.40
AITITE ©
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 62,382,000
and 650,000 share options outstanding under the Old
Scheme and the New Scheme, respectively, with
exercise period from 25 September 2000 to 2 June
2012 and exercise prices ranging from HK$0.2820 to
HK$0.9184. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 63,032,000
additional shares of HKS$0.10 each for an aggregate
consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$46

million.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

35.
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35.

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
The following share options were outstanding during
the year:
Number of share options
BREHE
Name or At1  Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled At 31
category of January during during during during  December
participant 2002  theyear  theyear  theyear the year 2002
it 3 Juk:3
it i +28
SREELIRN -f-B  EARE FAGE  FAKN  ERiEE =t-H
Directors E% ##
Under the Old Scheme
REER:E
Ms. Inn, Judy# 10,000,000 = ~(10,000,000) = =
iignet 3,000,000 = - (3,000,000) - -
13,000,000 = - (13,000,000) = =
Mr. Jia Hong Ping
BUTAE 3,500,000 = = = - 3,500,000
Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong 3,500,000 - - (3,500,000 = =
EEEFRL 754,000 - - - - 75400
400,000 = = = = 400,000
4,654,000 - - (3,500,000) - 1,154,000
Mr. Wong Wai Ming 30,000,000 = = = 30,000,000
BEHRE 6,000,000 = = = - 6,000,000
36,000,000 = = = 36,000,000
Mr. Yang Yiu Chong,
Ronald Jeffrey 1,960,000 - - - - 1,960,000
RRRTE 2,700,000 - - - - 1,700,000
4,660,000 = = = - 4,660,000
Mr. Young, Terence#
A ki 2,000,000 = - (2,000,000) N =
Other employees
RS
In aggregate
(under the 0ld Scheme)
AL (REERH) 21,492,000 400,000 -~ (4,824,000) - 17,068,000
In aggregate
(under the New Scheme)
AR (REMHE) 1,454,000 - (804,000 = 650,000
Totals 85,306,000 1,854,000 - (24,128,000) - 63,032,000
lobal Chin Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002
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AT RN F A RTT 2 B ARE -

Date of
grant of

share
options

BhRE
RHAH

23-10-00
31-8-01

23-10-00

3100
23-10-00
31-8-01

23-10-00

31-8-01

24:9-00
31-8-01

13-10-00

hk

Exercise
period of
share options

BREARER

24-10-00 to 23-10-10
20-9-02 to 19-9-11

01-12-00 to 23-10-10
1-1:01 to 31-12:02

24-10-00 to 23-10-10
20-9-02 to 19-9-11

24-10-00 to 23-10-10
20-9-02 to 19-9-11

25-9-00 to 24-9-10
20-9-02 to 19-9-11

14-10-00 to 23-10-10

Exercise price

Price of Company's shares****

ARARE™
At
At grant  exercise
of share ~ dateof  date of
options* options options
HKS HKS HKS
BhRE. BEE  BRER
i@ RHER fIKER
A7 A7 A
0.8704 0.65 -
0.3528 0.41 -
0.8704 0.65 -
1.35 1.87 =
0.8704 0.65 -
0.3528 0.41 -
0.8704 0.65 =
0.3528 0.41 -
0.9184 1.10 -
0.3528 0.41 -
0.8704 0.65 =
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

*

*kkk

##

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or

other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

These represent options granted to employees with
exercise prices ranging from of HK$0.282 to HK$1.35,
exercise period starting on the earliest on 31 October
2000 and ending on the latest on 21 March 2012 and
the price of the Company’s shares at grant date of
options ranging from HK$0.27 to HKS$1.87.

These represent options granted to employees with an
exercise price of HK$0.40, exercise period starting on
the earliest on 6 August 2002 and ending on the latest
on 2 June 2012 and the price of the Company’s shares

at grant date of options of HK$0.41.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed at grant
date of options is the closing price on the Stock
Exchange on the trading day immediately prior to the

date of offer of the grant of the options.

Mr. Terrence Young and Ms. Judy Inn resigned as
directors of the Company on 30 October 2002 and the
options granted to them lapsed during the year.

All the outstanding share options to the directors were

granted under the Old Scheme.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

35. BRESE (B
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36.

RESERVES

(@)

| Chin

Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 50 to 51 of this Annual
Report.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the
difference between the nominal value of shares
issued by Perfect Treasure Holdings (BVI) Limited
in exchange for the aggregate nominal value of
the issued capital of subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1996, prior

to the listing of the Company’s shares.

Certain amounts of negative goodwill arising on
the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years
remain credited to the capital reserve as

explained in note 17 to the financial statements.
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36. RESERVES (continued) 36. fE (&)
(b) Company (b) AAT
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
BRBEEE SHAEHB RAES &t

HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
TER TAT TER TAT

Company AATF

At 1 April 2001 R-TE—EmMA—8 761,605 104,950 (190,193 676,362
Issue of shares BITR D 71,190 = = 71,190
Share issue expenses BORODAX (47) = = (47)
Net loss for the period HANEEFE - - (206,166) (206,166)

At 31 December 2001 and R-_ZEEZ—F

1 January 2002 +—A=+—HR

—ZEE-_F—A—H 832,748 104,950 (396,359) 541,339
Issue of shares BT D 131,612 = = 131,612
Net loss for the year FREEFRE - = (79,071) (79,071)
At 31 December 2002 R-ZZE_F

+=A=+-8 964,360 104,950  (475,430) 593,880
The contributed surplus of the Company RABZBABBRERDNRRMD EWAITRBRE—
represents the excess of the fair value of the NMNAAEEREEMPEZMBARZRD AR
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to BE BARARARBRZEROMET 2RH
the group reorganisation in 1996, prior to the BzEZB REAEE-NN—F28E (KL
listing of the Company’s shares, over the nominal ) ARRAEETERT  UBARBRRER
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange EL DR

therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the Company may make
distributions to its members out of the

contributed surplus under certain circumstances.
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

()

| Chin

Changes to the layout of the consolidated cash
flow statements

SSAP 15 (Revised) was adopted during the current
year, as detailed in note 2 to the financial
statements, which has resulted in a change to
the layout of the cash flow statement. The
consolidated cash flow statement is now
presented under three headings: cash flows from
operating activities, investing activities and
financing activities. Previously, five headings were
used, comprising the three headings listed above,
together with cash flows from returns on
investments and servicing of finance and from
taxes paid. The significant reclassifications
resulting from the change in presentation are that
taxes paid are now included in cash flows from
operating activities, interest and dividends
received are now included in cash flows from
investing activities and interest paid are now
included in cash flows from financing activities.
The presentation of the comparative consolidated
cash flow statement for the period ended 31
December 2001 has been changed to accord with

the new layout.
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(continued)

()

Changes to the layout of the consolidated cash
flow statements (continued)

The method of calculation of certain items in the
consolidated cash flow statement has changed
under the revised SSAP 15, as explained under
the heading "Foreign currencies” in note 3 to
the financial statements. Cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries are now translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
Previously, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
were translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
This change has no significant impact in the
presentation of consolidated cash flow statement
for the period ended 31 December 2001.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

37. REBEREBRME ()

()
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 37. REABESHRERKE (8)

(continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (b) WEBHEARR
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001
BZ HZET—F
—EECF mMA—HZ
+=ZA=+-A8 —TE-F
t¥E +=ZA=+—H
Note HKS’000 HKS’000
k23 FET FAETL
Net assets acquired: BElEFEE -
Fixed assets EEE&E = 307
Inventories T8 = 34
Trade and bills receivables, UERRER
prepayments, deposits and FERNHIE
other receivables 2o & H A0 MR 348 387
Cash and bank balances B RIBITHEE 8,021 424
Trade and bills payables, ENEFRER - HEf
other payables and accruals JE T 5RI8 R B 5T B (1,628) (754)
Minority interests DR R (1,281) (183)
5,460 215
Goodwill on acquisition WHEREEZHE 17 2,340 5,952
7,800 6,167
Satisfied by: TR
Cash Re 7,800 2,157
Consideration included under BIEEEMENFRIE R
other payables and accruals EETHRIEARN 2 KE = 4,010

7,800 6,167
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)

(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)
An analysis of the net inflow/(outflow) of cash
and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition

of subsidiaries is as follows:

37.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

RERERBRME (&)

(b) WEKELF (&)
WENBARZRE KRG SEEBE
RN GRE) FEAMMT ¢

Period from

Year ended 1 April 2001 to

31 December 31 December

2002 2001

S H-TT—F

—BEC-F MA—BZE

+t=A=+-H —ETE-F

ILEE +-B=+-—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

Cash consideration ReRE (7,800) (2,157)
Cash and bank balances acquired BlelE 2 R & RIRITLHE R 8,021 424
221 (1,733)

The subsidiaries acquired during the year/period
made no significant contribution to the Group in
respect of the turnover and consolidated profit/
(loss) after tax and before minority interests for

the year/period.

FR/HRNREZHBARSAEE
FR/ BN EERBRBRREERG
LEBRRES 2GR R (B
B) TEFTREANER

Global China Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002 M




Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2002

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 37. REBESHRERKE (8)

(continued)

(c) Summary of effects of disposal of subsidiaries (c) HEMBARRCALEE2ZEM
and discontinued operations z
Year ended
31 December
2002
BE-ZE-F
+=BA=+—AH
LEE
Notes HK$’000
gz FET
Net assets disposed of: BEHEFEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 15 144,900
Long term investment REKE 500
Properties held for sale RIELEZYE 22,735
Inventories FE 24,369
Trade and bills receivables, prepayments, BRERREE -
deposits and other receivables HERHIE
& R H U R IE 87,255
Tax recoverable A e Bl F1 18 47
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE 5 124,699
Trade and bills payables, other ERNERERER - M EN
payables and accruals PR K &5 A (72,065)
Tax payable J& 15 B 18 (3,124)
Provision for long service payments ROARB S BB 32 (625)
Deferred tax EEIE 33 (6,886)
Minority interests DYRFEE R (26,751)
Net assets disposed of EHEFEE 295,054
Capital reserve realised on disposal HERER 2 ERGEE (84,213)
Gain on disposal* & s 93,352
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations HEBKIEER 2 W 8 207,312
511,505
Satisfied by: TR
Cash consideration, net of expenses BeRE  RHAX 536,088
Deferred income ERKA 31 (24,583)
511,505
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 37. REBRESHRERME (B)

(continued)

(c) Summary of effects of disposal of subsidiaries (c) HEMBARRERLEXRZFZEMN
and discontinued operations (continued) E(£)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash HEWBARRERIEEB 2HER
equivalents in respect of the disposal of ReFEBEEZRAFEIMAT :
subsidiaries and discontinued operations is as
follows:
Year ended
31 December
2002
BHE-Z3-F
+=ZRA=t-H
LEFEE
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration, net of expenses BeRE BMHAX 536,088
Cash and bank balances disposed of BERERe RETER (124,699)
411,389
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 37. RERERERWE (B)
(continued)
(c) Summary of effects of disposal of subsidiaries (c) HEMBARRCALEE2ZEM

and discontinued operations (continued) E (&)

| Chin

*

On 3 July 2002, the Group disposed of its 74.5%
equity interests in Sing Tao Holdings Limited to
Ming Yuan Investments Group Limited, an
independent third party, for a total consideration
of HK$163,800,000 (the “Disposal”). The
completion of the Disposal was conditional upon
certain conditions, one of which was the
completion of the distribution of the entire issued
share capital of Sing Tao Media, one of the then
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Sing Tao Holdings
Limited which was also the then holding company
of the subsidiaries engaging in the Group’s
publishing and media business, by way of a
special interim dividend in specie in the
proportion of one ordinary share of Sing Tao Media
for every ordinary share of Sing Tao Holdings
Limited (the "Distribution”). Immediately after
the Distribution, the Group’s equity interests in
Sing Tao Media remained at 74.5% and the assets
of Sing Tao Holdings Limited primarily comprised
non-media-related properties in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and Canada and cash. The
Distribution was completed on 21 August 2002
and had no significant financial impact to the
Group. The Disposal was completed on 23 August
2002 and resulted in a net gain on disposal of
HK$93,352,000.
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*

RZTZE-_F+tA=R " A&EMR
— % B Y % =% Ming Yuan
Investments Group LimitedJA #2 %
{€163,800,0003% 7T ! & 1 Sing Tao
Holdings Limited.Z 74.5%0%# ([
El) HEEETHRETTIHER
B BB ARURREZ
A3 LS B Sing Tao Holdings
Limited ¥ 38 % & 8 — f& Sing Tao
Media¥ A% 2 thfl + M Sing Tao
Holdings LimitedZ & % & i@ ik #
B A% ESing Tao Holdings
LimitedEH AR —H2EHWE R
ARAEEREHRREREL 2
B QA 2 ¥ i 2Q R]Sing Tao
Mediaz 2 BEEHTRG - ERK
AlHERE ([HIR]) - BED IR
% - K& B R Sing Tao MediaZ i%
B # R 74.5% M Sing Tao
Holdings LimitedZ? A E X Z 817
EEE - PERERMEAZFE
BHEENEUNRRE - IRR=Z
TFNAZT-HER  HAEAK
BV EREAZHBZE - HERZ
TE_FN\AZ+=HREK  HE
BT 18 2 W %)% %8 £ 93,352,0007%

JT ©
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(continued)

(d) Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(i)

After the Distribution, the Company issued
187,240,801 ordinary shares of HKS0.10 each
during the year to the then minority
shareholders of Sing Tao Media to acquire
their 25.5% equity interests in Sing Tao
Media (note 34(a)(iv)), and give rise to a
negative goodwill on acquisition of
approximately HK$160,100,000 (note 17).

During the year, the Group entered into
finance lease arrangements in respect of
fixed assets with a total capital value at
the inception of the leases of approximately
HK$817,000 (2001: Nil).

37.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

GERERBRME (&)

(d)

Global China Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002 E

TEFRERS

(i)

(if)

TR PR % AN 2 A [ Sing
Tao Media® ¥ 2 D Bk R 21T
187,240,801k & %0.10/%8 7T 2
LAk - DR 1 F R Sing
Tao Mediaz 25.5% % 4 (Fff 5T
34(a)(iv)) - WBELZ BHE
#) 5160,100,0007% 7T (K 3E
17) ©

FA - ARERBEEEEL
BMEBOTY  AAEMBNE
AEENR817,0008 T (= F
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38.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. HAEME
Group Company
REE NN
2002 2001 2002 2001
—RR-F ZTTF -BR-F -TT—F
Notes HKS’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
et FER FET FER FET

Guarantees for banking Bt A A RAT

facilities granted to HERABEER

subsidiaries (a) — — 68,650 31,450
Guarantees for banking HRZEH R AER

facilities granted to a RITEAEER

jointly-controlled entity (b) 15,000 - - —
Several guarantees for HEZEH QR

banking facilities RITEREZ

granted to a jointly- ZIEER

controlled entity (c) 63,471 49,408 - —
Other guarantees H R (d) - 110,000 - -

78,471 159,408 68,650 31,450

Notes: B&E -

(a) At 31 December 2002, the Company had outstanding (@ MKRZTZTZF+-A=+—H XRAAs
corporate guarantees of approximately HK$68,650,000 HEHNMB AR ER —RRTERERZM
(2001: HKS$31,450,000) issued in favour of banks to RITE N 2 DA ¥ER £68,650,0005% 7T
secure general banking facilities granted to its (ZZFZ—4F : 31,450,000/ 7T) ° bt FHHT
subsidiaries. These subsidiaries had not utilised any of BREEZZZE-_F+-_A=1+—H&KH
the facilities as at 31 December 2002 (2001: Nil). APAFARTERE(ZTZT—F

&) o

(b) At 31 December 2002, the Group had outstanding (b) RZTZE=F+=-A=+—H X£EH

corporate guarantees of approximately HK$15,000,000 H RIER 2 —RIBITHE AR

| Chin

(2001: Nil) issued in favour of a bank to secure general
banking facilities granted to a jointly-controlled entity.
The facilities were also secured by certain of the
Group’s cash deposits amounting to
HK$18,717,000(US$2,400,000). The jointly-controlled
entity had fully utilised the facilities as at 31 December

2002.
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R1TE 2 12 A #E4R 915,000,000/
T(ZRE—F : F) - RFHEAEULE
BETREHFH18,717,000% T
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ER-ZZ_F+-A=t—H28HA
ZERAE -
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38.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(c)

At 31 December 2002, the Group had given several
guarantees in favour of a bank to secure 50% of the
credit facilities granted to, and utilised by, a jointly-
controlled entity in Canada. As at 31 December 2002,
the Group’s proportionate share of such utilised credit
facilities was approximately HK$63,471,000 (2001:
HK$49,408,400).

The Group has an interest in a joint venture which,
until December 1996, owned a property which was
financed in part by a loan secured by a mortgage on
the property. Each joint venturer is committed to the
repayment of its proportionate share of the liability
under the mortgage and this is reflected in a several
guarantee given by the venturers to the mortgagee.
During 1996, the property was sold by the mortgagee
and the Group has written off its investment in the
joint venture and provided for its proportionate share
of the mortgage
HK$27,447,000 under the guarantee. There was a
contingent liability in respect of the remaining excess

liability of approximately

mortgage liability of approximately HK$110,000,000, in
the event that the Group’s obligations were determined
to be joint and several, and the other venturers failed
to honour their attributable portions. The Group had
obtained legal advice which confirmed that such a

claim, whilst possible, was unlikely to succeed.

38.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

HAKME (F)

(c)

(d)
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R-ZZTE-_F+-A=+—0 A£ELT
FEMNMER 2 —BHREH QA DES
REBRZROIBERER—RRTELS
HER - EH0% 2 BRE  NZTTZ
F+ZA=+—H8 ' AEERLHIEEZ
SEHAZEEHEAELA63,471,0007%
T (ZZEZE—F : 49,408,400/5 T) °

AREHFAE-HA2bR s - %%
E-—NNAARE+-_AEE-—ENE &
EHNRAENZENEZBRERZE
o BREDERAGHEREMELIEER
AREBOES  WEAEAREZETR
AR NE BB ERR B R RER - 10—
ANNE  ARABZBENELE WA
SETEHHAESELRZRE  IRA
SERBERMAREGLIZZBES
B E#27,447,0008 T - HEASEZ R
EREEABARENEE  MEMSE
AAREBITEBZED - ABRT 2RBE
A - &6 4110,000,000% T 2 kA B
& AEEERBERER - BEZER
RGERSTA  BNBLATREE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

38.

39.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(d)

(continued)

The applicable limitation period with respect to the
mortgagee’s ability to assert a claim would be six years
from the date of disposal of the property, which ended
in December 2002. The Group has not received any
claims from the mortgagee during the aforesaid
limitation period and up to the date of approval of
these financial statements. Based on a legal advice,
the directors consider that the limitation period has
run and that a claim would not be likely to succeed
against the Group. Accordingly, the Group reversed the
provision in respect of its proportionate share of
mortgage liability of approximately HK$27,447,000
under the guarantee and the directors are of the opinion
that the contingent liability in respect of the remaining
excess mortgage liability no longer existed as at 31
December 2002.

PENDING LITIGATION

The Group has received claims made against certain

subsidiaries for damages in respect of alleged

defamation. Based on legal opinion, the directors are

of the opinion that adequate provision has been made

in the financial statements to cover any potential

liabilities arising from the litigation.

| Chin
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39.

RREE (B)

(dy (#&)
ERAFTREBR 2 BARGIHBRALE
MEBBRAE  MZBREN-ZTEZ
FHARER - A%E B L ERR 58
PR i R Bt B BN B AR A 2
EER - REZEER EZRAERH
HREBE  MAAEERECRREER
e NRATREKD « Bt - AEEREER
BEREEGLOZEBEB D
27,447,0008 7T - MEERABZE_TZ
ZFFZ A+t BUYERERKRIEZEE
Bz RaE -

EHREHARZHFH

AEEREETHELRAREY RHMmE
RUZBRR -BRBZEZER EZERAARL
SECHRLENBRRPIELRHBEEN
EEEMAERFAMEEZER -
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40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@)

As lessor

The Group leases certain investment properties
(note 15 to the financial statements) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five
years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according

to the then prevailing market conditions.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total
future minimum lease rental receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants

falling due as follows:

40.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

REBNRY

(@)

fEBHBA
AEEREEERORIELETR
AmE BBBENEI5)  EEE
2R BE—EHE - BAZHR—
BETARARARES TR
SUEBEEBTRAL -

REZER - AEERE T HREER
ZAAHEREROR KR RARRKE
MEBER:

Group
rEE
2002 2001
—EE_F —TT—F
HKS’000 HKS’000
FHET FET
Within one year —FR 5,277 4,052
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F - ZERF(BEEEME) 4,925 4,740
10,202 8,792
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40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 40. REBHRE (B)
(b) As lessee (b)y EHEBA
The Group leases certain of its office properties AEERBECEMNLERES TH
and printing equipment under operating lease NEMEREDFIZRE - KEH M
arrangements. Leases for these properties and REREE2ANAR—ZE=F -

printing equipment are negotiated for terms

ranging from one to two years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total REER - REERE T HEER
future minimum lease payments under non- Z A B E AN EN 2 A RRIE
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: HeBER
Group
rEHE
2002 2001
—BRCF —EEF
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 12,679 15,854
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ZZERF(BEEEME) 5,300 15,706
17,979 31,560
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41.

At
—-FF

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

COMMITMENTS 41. &¥E
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B EXCFIFE40(b) 2 B EHE AL + KK
in note 40(b) above, the Group had the following EREERBUT 2 AE
commitments at the balance sheet date:
(a) Capital commitments (@) EXREIE
Group
rEE
2002 2001
—EBE-F —EE-F
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Capital commitments: BRI
Contracted for BERI4 60,678 17,578
Authorised, but not contracted for ERAERRATA 494 8,421
61,172 25,999
In addition, the Group’s share of jointly-controlled GBS EXWRBIENAREEESL
entities’ own capital commitments which are not HEZEFREARNE 2 BAREEMNT
included in the above, was as follows:
Group
rEH
2002 2001
—EBECF —EEF
HKS’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for BET4){B R B 3,367 1,915

(b) Forward foreign exchange contracts
At the balance sheet date, the Group had no
commitments in respect of forward foreign

exchange contracts (2001: HKS4,365,000).

The Company had no material commitments at the

balance sheet date.

(b) EBHIEESHN
REER - $E@1ﬁﬁﬂﬁft%
INEANZAE(ZZT—F
4,365,000/ 7T) °

ARBRAEE B I TR EREE -
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ents

42.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

()

(c)

| Chin

On 2 January 2003, the Company received a
redemption notice from Luckman, which required
the Company to redeem 1,123,486,908 preference
shares in issue of the Company registered in the
name of Luckman at a redemption price of
HKS$0.06388 per preference share, being its partly
paid-up capital (the “Redemption”). Upon the
completion of the Redemption, the share capital
and net assets of the Company and the Group

were reduced by approximately HK$72 million.

On 16 January 2003, the Group entered into three
conditional sale and purchase agreements to
dispose of certain of the Group’s investment
properties with an aggregate carrying value of
HKS$31 million as at 31 December 2002, to two
independent third parties at a total consideration
of HK$36 million. The disposal is expected to be
completed during May to June 2003 and would
result in a net gain, before expenses, of

approximately HKS5 million.

On 10 February 2003, Singdeer Investments
Limited, bare trustee of Singdeer Joint Venture
which is a jointly-controlled entity in which the
Group holds 50% equity interests, entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of the Colony
Hotel, a hotel in Toronto beneficially owned by
Singdeer Joint Venture for a consideration of
HK$333.6 million (C$67.4 million), subject to
adjustments. The transaction has not been
completed at the date of approval of these
financial statements and, accordingly, the
financial impact of this transaction cannot be
reliably estimated and no disclosures were made

in respect thereof.
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42.

HRERRERE

(@)

(b)

(c)

RZEE=F—AZH AR aEE
Luckmanz lEEIB A - ZRKA R AIE
ERBHEHMERTNERELERE
8 {£0.063885% 7T f& [0 LA Luckman#
£ E50.21,123,486,9080 A 1 ) B %
TEER - ([FER]) - EREMAE -
ARARRAEEZRAREEFER
> #772,000,000% T °

ZT=F—H+"A  NEEF]
AEGHEERS  MMEEL
1% 481X (36,000,000 T i &
ETRENME  ZEREME
N_EE_FE+_A=+—HZHERK
[E {8 431,000,000/ 7T ° HjﬁfEHHEA
—EE-FRAEASAHETEX
EE%"J&OO0,000}%EZWE%@(?l]
BRBIAT) -

[
ENH

%%m S5
A® L1
S

H

MRZZEZE=F_H+H - Singdeer
Joint Venture (785 Bl % A E 50% % #
ZHEREFIRAR) 2 EIRHZTRE
Singdeer Investments Limitedf — %
BUE-EIVEKRUHEERZ 1
SN %% ZColony Hotel
(Singdeer Joint VentureE 25 A 2
—MBE)  SAEERAE333,600,000
7 7T (67,400,00007C * SHEAE) -
Ei R SR M E I | F A& B BN
RTEK BB EAERAZRIA
EEZHBYE  BXEELEE -
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42. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued) 42. H#HEBHRZBE(E)

(d) On 24 April 2003, the directors have proposed a (d) RZZET=FMWA=-+EA TFE
distribution of HK$0.01 per share to the FZAAARRRIELGR0.01E T2
shareholders of the Company (the *Proposed DK & ££#918,200,0007 7T ([#E 5
Distribution”) in an aggregate amount of K] - BARAFEADRRERAD

AR RITRRRE A E ERBR
RURARRREER - BRMGE
BRAMEHARR 2 RetBE U RIE

approximately HKS$18.2 million. The Proposed
Distribution is conditional, amongst others, upon

the approval by the Company’s shareholders, at

a special general meeting to be convened, of the ARBHABBRMIREE 2 RERE
proposed resolutions for the reduction of the FAEE -
Company’s share premium account, applying the
credit arising therefrom to offset the Company’s
accumulated losses and to increase the Company’s
contributed surplus.
43, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43, BEALXRS
In addition to the transactions and balances detailed BRI RERMNEMM AL 2R 5 EER
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had O REBRERNBIRMEREEA L
the following material transactions with related parties MR ZEARRS ¢
during the year/period:
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2001 to
31 December 31 December
2002 2001
Bz H-ZT-F
it 2 =t MA-HZ
t=ZA=t-H —ETF
LtEE  +-A=1+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
fif it FE7 FAET
Rental income received from associates REBEARZ
EREEBA (i) 150 122
News service fee income received from RE—HEXREHARZ
a jointly-controlled entity BERFEREERKA (i) 8,000 6,000
Printing service charges paid and payable B RER — R
to a jointly-controlled entity AR ZHRBIRBER (iii) 59,429 52,578
Reimbursement of expenses paid on MR A BERERE
behalf of the Company to an affiliate of Z—HBBARIEE
the Company’s controlling shareholder RERBI N ZAX (iv) 1,153 621
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43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 43.

Notes:

(i)  The rental income was determined between parties with

reference to the prevailing market price.

(i)  The news service fee was charged on an annual fixed

amount basis pursuant to the news service agreement.

(iii)  The printing service was charged on a cost plus mark-

up basis pursuant to the printing agreement.

(iv)  The reimbursement of expenses was made at cost.

During the year, the Group had granted corporate
guarantees of HK$15,000,000 and pledged certain of
its cash deposits amounting to HK$18,717,000
(US$2,400,000) as securities for banking facilities of
approximately HK$15,000,000 granted to a jointly-
controlled entity. As at 31 December 2002, such

facilities were fully utilised.

Details of the Group’s balances with jointly-controlled
entities and associates as at the balance sheet date
are disclosed in notes 20 and 21 to the financial

statements, respectively.
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44,

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

44,

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as

at 31 December 2002 were as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAR AR

Artland International
Limited
2EEABRARAA

ERRZEEBGM R
BERAR#

Beijing Meitian Yingfu
Network Co., Ltd. ##

ERERKFERSE
ER R Al#

Flash Bright Development
Limited
THERERAA

Global China Broad Band
Network Company
Limited

Global China Convergence
Software Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
AR
BERBEwE

Hong Kong
BB

Mainland China
B K e

Mainland China
B K e

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
&R

British
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RERLHE/BE

Nominal

value of issued
share/registered
capital
BRTRAEE/
ZMEX

HK$1,000
ordinary shares
1,000 70 & AR

RMB3,000,000
registered

capital

AR #%3,000,0007T
A1 & AR

US$1,200,000
registered
capital
1,200,000 ¢
& AR

HK$5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,000/ 7T
EREL

HK$1,000
ordinary shares
1,0007% 7T & i ik

Y
ordinary share
1ETERR

Coy PN

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

AARETEWMBRARAIR -_ZEE_F+_H8
S S R U

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company

ARREERA
Batt

Direct Indirect
BE &%
70 -
- 100
55 -
- 100
- 100
100 -
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Principal
activities

IREHK

Investment
holding
RE K

Software
development

RFRE

Sale of
photographic
products

BEAMHE

Distribution of
photographic
products
F a9

Investment
holding
REER

Investment
holding
REER
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44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Global China Corporate
Finance Limited

EMBERERAA

Global China Infohub
Limited

Global China Information
Services Limited

Global China Information
Technology (Beijing)
Limited

Global China Management
Services Limited

Global China Marketing
Limited
RERRERAA

Place of

incorporation/
registration
and operations
MBI/
BERBE L

Hong Kong
&R

British

Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRLHEE/BE

British

Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRLHEE/BE

British

Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRAHEE/BE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

lobal China Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002

44,

Nominal

value of issued
share/registered

capital

BRTRAEE

Zmax

HK$5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,000/ 7t

Lk

UsS1
ordinary share
1ETERR

Y
ordinary share
1ETERR

Y
ordinary share
1ETERR

HK$20
ordinary shares
20/ 0 i

HK$10,000,000
ordinary shares
10,000,000/ 7T

el

WEDRRE (E)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company

KRR EERA
Bak

Direct Indirect
BE %
100 -
- 100
- 100
- 100
100 -
- 100

Principal
activities

FREHR

Provision of corporate
finance advisory

services

RECEREERE RS

Investment
holding
REER

Investment
holding
REER

Investment
holding
REER

Provision of
management
services to Group
companies

BENS|
A E IR IR

Distribution
of watches

F9
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44,

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAR AR

Global China Media
Technology Limited

Global China Multimedia
Limited

Global China Training
Service and Technology
Limited

Golden Glory Technology
Limited

Perfect Treasure Holdings
(BVI) Limited

Perfect Treasure Investment

Limited
BEERARLA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
AL
BERBE L

British
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRUHS /B

British
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBRAMB/BE

British
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBRLMB/BE

British
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBRAMB/BE

British
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBRAMB/BE

Hong Kong
BB

44,

Nominal

value of issued
share/registered
capital
ERTRAEE/
ZMEX

Uss$1
ordinary share
1ETEBR

Uss$1
ordinary share
1EXETEBR

USss$1
ordinary share
1ETEBR

USs$1
ordinary share
1EXTEBR

US$1,000
ordinary shares
1,000% 7T & i fig

HK$100,000
ordinary shares

100,000/% 7T & i ik

WEQBFE (&)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company

ARREERA
Batt

Direct Indirect
BE &%
100 -
100 -
- 100
100 -
100 -
- 100
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Principal
activities

IREHK

Investment
holding
RE K

Investment
holding
RE K

Investment
holding
KA K

Investment
holding
KA K

Investment
holding
RE K

Securities
trading and
investing

EHREERRE




31 December 2002

Notes to Financial State

ents

44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Topgain Trading Limited

The Standard Newspapers
Limited (formerly known
as "Hong Kong iMail
Newspapers Limited”)

Mapleleaf Holdings
Limited

China Touch Magazine
Group (BVI) Limited

China Touch Media
Solutions and Services
Limited
| | Chin Holdings Limited Annual R

Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of issued
registration share/registered
and operations capital
EMRL BRTROEE
BERBE L &R
British Uss$1
Virgin Islands/ ordinary share
Hong Kong 1ETERR
ERRAHE /B
Hong Kong HK$3,435,000
e ordinary shares

3,435,0007% 7T & & R

Cayman Islands/ Us$1
Hong Kong ordinary share
REels/ &k Uss2
redeemable

preference shares

1ZTEBR

2ETAERELR

British HK$150,000,000
Virgin Islands/ ordinary shares
Hong Kong 150,000,000 7t
RERZHE/BE Lidk
Hong Kong Y
e ordinary share
1ETERR

rt 2002

44,

WEDRRE (E)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company

KRR EERA
Bak
Direct Indirect
BE %
100 -
- 100
- 100
- 94.6
- 94.6

Principal
activities

FREHR

Group treasury
SEAE

Newspaper
publishing and
property holding

REETRMERS

Investment
holding
A

Investment
holding
REER

Magazine
publishing
M
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44,

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAR AR

Sing Tao (Canada) Limited

Sing Tao Finance Limited

Sing Tao Holdings (BVI)
Limited

Sing Tao Limited

Sing Tao Newspapers
(Los Angeles) Limited

Sing Tao Newspapers
New York Limited

Sing Tao Newspapers
Pty. Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
AL
BERBE L

Canada
mex

Hong Kong
BB

British
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBRAMB/BE

Hong Kong
BB

United States
of America

*H

United States
of America

*H

Australia
3l

44,

Nominal

value of issued
share/registered
capital
ERTRAEE/
ZMEX

€41

ordinary share
(58,250,000
preference shares
1070 % @ AR
8,250,000/0 7T
BER

HK$2
ordinary shares
2B L AR

USs$1
ordinary share
1EXTEBR

HKS$77,650,000
ordinary shares
77,650,000% 7T

Timk

US$100,000
ordinary shares
100,000% 1T
=Rl

USs$1,750,000

ordinary shares
1,750,000% 7T
=Rl

A$250,000
ordinary shares
250,000 7T & & ]

WEQBFE (&)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
AAREERE
Bakl
Direct Indirect

BE# B &

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100
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Principal
activities

IREHK

Investment
holding and
property holding
RERBREMERE

Financing
intermediary

MBEN

Investment
holding
RE K

Newspaper
publishing
REET

Newspaper
publishing
REET

Newspaper
publishing
REET

Newspaper
publishing
REET
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44, PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. KEARFE (&)
Place of Nominal Percentage
incorporation/ value of issued of equity
registration share/registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities
MBI/ ERTRGEE/ AAREERE
HEARER BRRRE ZMEX Bat TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE &
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$250,000 - 100  Newspaper
San Francisco Limited of America ordinary shares publishing
e 250,000 7t & i@ ik REET
Sing Tao (U.K.) United Kingdom £100 - 100  Newspaper
Limited i ordinary shares publishing
100 % & i@ ik BEET
Sing Tao Media Cayman Islands HK$4,196,192 - 100  Investment
Holdings Limited HEHS ordinary shares holding
4,196,192/ 7t & @R REEK
Wealthpop Limited Hong Kong HKS2 - 100  Property holding
B ordinary shares WEEE
2B T ERK
Sing Tao Educational Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Book publishing
Publications Limited Bk ordinary shares EERT

10,0008 7T & & &

# The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

##  The subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint venture. It

is not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other

Ernst & Young International member firms.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets and/or liabilities of the Group.

To give details of all the Company’s subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

ited Annual Report 2002

# ZMBABA—RIEEBELE -

#  ZWBRARAE—TEPIAELE  TIkMH
ZXKEFAEHFTH Ernst & Young
International i 8 2 7] 1% °

EERA LRIBZHMBRARIERE
REREE  IBRAKRBEER /L&

BEREEZERHN - EERR

CHNAR

AMENBRARESREBANITE
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45.

46.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of certain new and
revised SSAPs during the current year, the accounting
treatment and presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements have been revised
to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly,
certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 24 April 2003.

45.

46.

—EFE-F+-A=+—H

EBEHF

PINE IR T2 - AR AR FERBR
ETeH RGBT et ERER - 5T
BRARERZEHRETERERBRR
ZERFTACKER  UFEHRTE - B
It BETHBREFHREELHE  UFAXR
FEZEHTA -

e ENIE e E

ETeRN _ET_FNA-_THB#HEZEAE
Bk o
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